
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
MAY 15, 2006 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The Acting City Manager 

NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

May 15, 2006 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Reverend Paul Monson – St. Augustine 
Evangelical Lutheran Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Preliminary Planned Unit Development Approval – PUD-5 Caswell Town Center – 
East Side of Rochester Road, South of South Boulevard, R-1D, B-3 and P-1, 
Section 2 1 

C-2 Adoption of 2006/07 City Budget 3 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 6 

NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

D-1 No Postponed Items 6 



 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: 6 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 6 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 6 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 6 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 6 

a) 18  Annual Celebration of Life Picnic at William Beaumont Hospital, National 
Cancer Survivors Day in the City of Troy – Sunday, June 4, 2006

th

....................... 7 
b) Mental Health Month – May 2006......................................................................... 7 
c) Arbor Day 2007 – 2009 ........................................................................................ 7 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 7 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – 3-Year 
Requirements of Emergency Repair and General Maintenance for Overhead 
Doors.................................................................................................................... 7 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Aquatic 
Center Pool Maintenance and Repair Services .................................................... 7 

E-5 Private Agreement for Franklin Bank – Project No. 06.902.3 8 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 8 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 8 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Employee 
Retirement System Board of Trustees & Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & 
Trust; Historic District Commission; Municipal Building Authority; Personnel Board; 
and Troy Daze Committee 9 

F-2 Approval of Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 2006-07 Budget 10 

F-3 Approval of Local Development Finance Authority 2006-07 Budget 11 

F-4 Approval of Downtown Development Authority 2006-07 Budget 11 



 

 

F-5 Proposed Resolution In Support of the Current Local Cable Franchise Agreement 
System 11 

F-6 Amendment to Chapter 20 of the City Code (Water and Sewer Rates) 12 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 13 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 13 

a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal Renewal – 6881 Westaway – June 5, 2006........... 13 
b) Rezoning Application (Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of 

Vanderpool, West of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-
1E to B-2 – June 5, 2006.................................................................................... 13 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 13 

a) Revisions to Troy City Code Chapter 18 (City Water Utility)............................... 13 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 13 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 13 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 13 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 13 

REPORTS: 13 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 13 

a) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – December 15, 2005...................... 13 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – April 5, 2006 .............. 13 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – April 5, 2006 .............. 13 
d) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – April 6, 2006............................. 13 
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – May 4, 2006............................. 13 

J-2 Department Reports: 13 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of April, 2006 ............. 13 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 13 

a) Letter of Appreciation from the Souvatzidis Family Regarding the 
Professionalism and Efforts of Lieutenant Scherlinck......................................... 13 



 

 

b) Letter to Chief Craft from St. Joseph Catholic Chaldean Church Thanking the 
Troy Police Department for Assistance with Traffic Control During Easter 
Services.............................................................................................................. 13 

c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Diana Folleth, Capitol Barricading, 
Inc., Regarding the Assistance Provided by the Troy Police Department........... 13 

d) Letter to Chief Craft from Marty Torgler, Combine International, Inc., 
Commending the Performance and Professionalism of Lieutenant Chuck 
Pappas ............................................................................................................... 13 

e) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Chris Gartner Regarding the Efforts and 
Professionalism of Officer Rushton .................................................................... 13 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 13 

a) Resolution from Rose Township – Retaining Local Control of Cable 
Franchising ......................................................................................................... 13 

J-5  Calendar 14 

J-6  Communication from the Troy Police Department Regarding Troy Police Citizens 
Forum 14 

J-7  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) – 
Quarterly Report for April, 2006 14 

J-8  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding Cable Franchise 
Lawsuit Against the City of Troy 14 

J-9  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding Carrie Zanoni v. City of 
Troy, Officer Jones, and Sergeant Stout 14 

J-10  Communication from the Director of Building and Zoning Mark Stimac Regarding 
Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3463 Crooks Road 14 

STUDY ITEMS: 14 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 14 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 14 

CLOSED SESSION: 14 

L-1 Closed Session:  Review of Applications for Employment for the Position of City 
Manager Permitted by Resolution #2006-04-188 14 



 

 

ADJOURNMENT 15 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

Monday, May 22, 2006 CANCELLED Regular City Council.................................. 15 
Monday, June 5, 2006 Regular City Council ......................................................... 15 
Saturday, June 10, 2006 Special City Council ...................................................... 15 
Monday, June 19, 2006 Regular City Council ....................................................... 15 
Monday, July 10, 2006 Regular City Council......................................................... 15 
Monday, July 24, 2006 Regular City Council......................................................... 15 
Monday, August 14, 2006 Regular City Council.................................................... 15 
Monday, August 28, 2006 Regular City Council.................................................... 15 
Monday, September 11, 2006 Regular City Council ............................................. 15 
Monday, September 18, 2006 Regular City Council ............................................. 15 
Monday, September 25, 2006 Regular City Council ............................................. 15 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Reverend Paul Monson – St. 
Augustine Evangelical Lutheran Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations    
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Preliminary Planned Unit Development Approval – PUD-5 Caswell Town Center – 
East Side of Rochester Road, South of South Boulevard, R-1D, B-3 and P-1, 
Section 2   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Michigan Home Builders requested preliminary planned unit development approval 
for Caswell Town Center Planned Unit Development (PUD 5), located on the east side of 
Rochester Road south of South Boulevard, Section 2, within the R-1D, B-3 and P-1 zoning 
districts, being 18.62 acres in size; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City’s planning consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, 
Inc., prepared a memorandum dated April 27, 2006 that recommends approval of Caswell 
Town Center Planned Unit Development; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Management recommends preliminary planned unit development approval for 
Caswell Town Center Planned Unit Development; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

WHEREAS, On March 28, 2006, the Planning Commission recommended approval of a 
preliminary plan for a planned unit development, pursuant to Article 35.60.01 of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
RESOLVED, The proposed PUD meets the eligibility requirements set forth in Article 35.30.00 
and the general development standards set forth in Section 35.40.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the preliminary planned unit development application 
consists of a CD dated May 2, 2006 and the following full size plans: 
 

The following plans were prepared by Hennessey Engineers, Inc.: 
 

CE1  Topographic Survey 
CE1A  Boundary Survey 
CE1B  Tree Survey 
CE1C  Tree Survey 
CE1D  Tree Survey 
CE2  Preliminary Site Plan 
CE2A  Snow Removal Plan 
CE2B  Photometric Plan 
CE2C  Drainage Calculations 
CE3  Preliminary Grading Plan 
CE4  Preliminary Utility Plan 
CE4A  Preliminary Pond Details 
CE5  Soil Boring Plan 

 
The following plans were prepared by Calvin Hall & Associates: 

 
L-1 of 6 Landscape Plan 
L-2 of 6 Landscape Plan 
L-3 of 6 Landscape Plan 
L-4 of 6 Amenity Site Plan and Pedestrian Circulation Walk Plan 
L-5 of 6 Entry Walls and Signage Reference Plan 
L-6 of 6 Site Section Elevations 

 
The following plan was prepared by Bill Carr Signs: 

 
Double-Face Illuminated Sign (8 ½” x 11”) 

 
The following plans were prepared by Alexander V. Bogaerts & Associates, P.C.: 

 
Front Elevation 
Left, Right and Rear Elevation 
Garage Level Building Plan 
First Floor Building Plan 
Second Floor Building Plan 
Unit Floor Plan 
Elevations – Proposed Retail Buildings 
Front Elevation - Proposed Retail Building w/ Coffee Shop 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

Left and Right Side and Rear Elevations - Proposed Retail Building w/ Coffee 
Shop 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the ground or pylon sign proposed at the boulevard 
entrance on the east side of Rochester Road, as illustrated on the 8½” x 11” double-face 
illuminated sign drawing, prepared by Bill Carr Signs, shall not exceed 15 feet in height, as 
recommended by the Planning Commission; and   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Caswell Town 
Center Preliminary Planned Unit Development.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Adoption of 2006/07 City Budget   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter directs the City Council to adopt a budget for the 
ensuing year, beginning July 1, 2006. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations, operating 
transfers-in, and operating revenues of the General Operating Fund are anticipated: 
 

Taxes      $35,473,690 
Licenses and Permits       2,059,000 
Federal Grants             34,500 
State Grants         6,765,000 
Contributions - Local          140,000 
Charges for Services       6,475,300 
Fines and Forfeits        1,012,000 
Interest and Rents        1,443,300 
Other Revenue           491,900 
Operating Transfers - In       4,724,870 
Re-appropriation        6,367,250

                         
Total               $64,986,810; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating Fund shall be six 
and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2006 taxable valuation; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the General Operating Fund: 

 
  Building Inspection    $ 2,169,250 

 Council/Executive Administration     2,041,140 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

  Engineering        3,096,890 
  Finance        4,869,370 
  Fire         4,212,260 
  Library /Museum       5,002,000 
  Other General Government     2,807,150 
  Police       23,174,400 
  Parks and Recreation      8,744,820 
  Streets                                     5,359,530 
  Operating Transfer Out      3,510,000
 

Total      $64,986,810; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed re-appropriations and revenues of the 
Capital Fund are anticipated: 
 
  Taxes      $ 8,189,000 
  Federal Grants          305,000 
  State Grants        1,409,000 
  Charges for Services         150,000 
  Interest and Rents          607,200 
  Other Revenue          335,260 
  Operating Transfer In      5,700,000 
  Re-appropriation       3,102,000
 
                Total      $19,797,460; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and sixty one-
hundredths (1.60) mills on the 2006 taxable valuation; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Fund: 
 
 Building Inspection    $        10,000 
 Drains           1,205,780 
 Finance             100,000 
 Fire              497,830 
 Information Technology              700,000 
 Library             229,650 
 Museum             265,000 
 Other General Government                 2,170,000 
 Police               554,700 
 Parks and Recreation        3,778,500 
 Streets          9,116,000 
 Public Works          1,170,000
 
 Total                                                         $19,797,460;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues of the Refuse Fund are 
anticipated: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

 
 Taxes      $ 4,248,000  
 Charges for Services             1,500 
 Interest and Rents          100,000 
 Re-appropriation          182,330
        
 Total      $ 4,531,830; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be eighty- three one-
hundredths (.83) mills on the 2006 taxable valuation; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,531,830; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,005,190; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of fifty one-hundredths (.50) mills 
on the 2006 taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund. 
 
AND BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the following budgets are APPROVED as shown in the 
2006/07 budget document: 

   
 Major Road Fund     $  3,725,240 
 Local Road Fund     $  1,580,460 
 Community Development Block Grant Fund $     253,820 
 Troy Community Fair Fund    $     197,110 
 Budget Stabilization Fund    $       40,000 
 2000 MTF Debt Fund    $     256,640 
 Proposal A Debt Fund    $     800,970 
 Proposal B Debt Fund    $  1,393,950 
 Proposal C Debt Fund    $     746,770 
 Special Assessment Fund    $  4,052,420 
 Water Supply System    $14,400,550 
 Sanitary Sewer Fund    $11,097,790 
 Aquatic Center Fund    $     616,730 
 Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund   $  1,161,150 
 Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund  $  2,059,880 
 Building Operations     $  1,835,610 
 Information Technology Fund   $  1,527,740 
 Fleet Maintenance Fund    $  4,274,110 
 Workers’ Compensation Fund   $     530,000 
 Compensated Absences Fund   $  4,424,320 
 Unemployment Insurance Fund   $       73,000 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-05-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of May 8, 2006 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

a) 18th Annual Celebration of Life Picnic at William Beaumont Hospital, National 
Cancer Survivors Day in the City of Troy – Sunday, June 4, 2006   

b) Mental Health Month – May 2006 
c) Arbor Day 2007 – 2009  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy wishes to acknowledge that Troy’s urban forest reduces noise,  
air pollution, energy costs, reflected light, flooding, stabilizes soils, sequesters carbon, 
provides habitat for wildlife and improves the overall quality of life. 
 
WHEREAS, Trees in our City increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of 
business areas, and beautify our community. 
 
WHEREAS, Troy desires to be recognized as a Tree City USA by The National Arbor Day 
Foundation and wishes to continue its tree-planting ways. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
PROCLAIMS May 4, 2007, May 2, 2008, and May 1, 2009 as Arbor Day in the City of Troy, and 
urges all citizens to support our City’s urban forestry program and to plant trees to gladden the 
hearts and promote the well-being of present and future generations. 
  
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – 3-Year Requirements of 

Emergency Repair and General Maintenance for Overhead Doors            
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish three (3) year requirements of emergency repair and 
general maintenance of overhead doors at various City buildings is hereby AWARDED to the 
low bidder, Garrett Door Company of Pontiac, MI, for an estimated cost of $20,918.00 per year 
to expire May 31, 2009, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened April 20, 2006; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Aquatic Center 

Pool Maintenance and Repair Services            
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-05- 
 
WHEREAS, On June 21, 2004, a one (1) year contract with two (2) one-year options to renew 
to provide pool maintenance and repair services at the Troy Community Center and Family 
Aquatic Center was awarded to the sole bidder, B & B Pool and Spas of Livonia, MI (Resolution 
#2004-06-329-E-6); and  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

WHEREAS, On June 20, 2005, the first one-year option to renew was exercised and approved 
with B & B Pool and Spas under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions expiring June 
30, 2006 (Resolution #2005-06-299-E4d); and  
 
WHEREAS, B & B Pool and Spas has agreed to exercise the second one-year option to renew 
the contract under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the 2004 contract. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the second one-year option to renew the 
contract is hereby EXERCISED with B & B Pool and Spas to provide Aquatic and Community 
Center pool maintenance and repair services under the same pricing structure, terms and 
conditions as the 2004 contract expiring June 30, 2007. 
 
E-5 Private Agreement for Franklin Bank – Project No. 06.902.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-05- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Branch Facilitators, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of water main on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Employee 
Retirement System Board of Trustees & Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; 
Historic District Commission; Municipal Building Authority; Personnel Board; and 
Troy Daze Committee  

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Unexpired Term Expires 11/01/06 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/09 
 
Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees & 
Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust
Appointed by Council (8) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 04/15/09 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

 
 Term Expires 07/01/06  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 (Architect) 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Personnel Board
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/09 
 
Troy Daze Committee 
Appointed by  (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Approval of Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 2006-07 Budget 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its 2006/07 Annual Budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Annual Budget for Fiscal Year July 1, 2006 through June 
30, 2007. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

F-3 Approval of Local Development Finance Authority 2006-07 Budget 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Local Development Finance Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its 2006/07 Annual Budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Local Development Finance Authority Annual Budget for Fiscal Year July 1, 2006 through June 
30, 2007. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Approval of Downtown Development Authority 2006-07 Budget 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its 2006/07 Annual Budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Downtown Development Authority Annual Budget for Fiscal Year July 1, 2006 through June 30, 
2007. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Proposed Resolution In Support of the Current Local Cable Franchise Agreement 

System 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Cities and villages have a long and very successful history of supporting the 
introduction of new cable/video services, a successful deployment made possible in large part 
by the current system of local cable franchising;  
 
WHEREAS, AT&T and Verizon have been actively advocating across the country that local 
cable franchise agreements be eliminated;   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

WHEREAS, AT&T is blaming Michigan communities as the reason they can not enter into the 
cable/video business, while local communities, and local residents, want more cable 
competition and would quickly allow AT&T into their community; AT&T has refused to negotiate 
a franchise with any city, village, or township;   
 
WHEREAS, Local communities’ participation in the cable franchising process ensures build-out 
requirements so that all residents irrespective of age, race, education, or income level, receive 
the same service;  
 
WHEREAS, Our community believes that all residents should have access to the same 
cable/video service.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy is OPEN for cable/video 
business, and can guarantee that within days of a formal request we can have a franchise 
agreement ready for any new cable/video providers consideration;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AFFIRMS its support for the 
current local cable franchise agreement system and urges federal and state policymakers to 
only support legislation that:  
 

1. Maintains local control of the cable franchise process; 
2. Ensures build-out requirements so that providers are not able to “cherry-pick” 

customers, or stops current cable providers from shutting down service to current 
cable service areas; 

3. Ensures no reduction in direct revenues and that Michigan’s Metro Act is 
preserved.   

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution BE FORWARDED to our state 
legislators in Lansing, our Congressional representatives in Washington, D.C., Governor 
Granholm and the Michigan Municipal League.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Amendment to Chapter 20 of the City Code (Water and Sewer Rates) 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an amendment to Chapter 20, Water 
and Sewer Rates, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal Renewal – 6881 Westaway – June 5, 2006  
b) Rezoning Application (Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of Vanderpool, 

West of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to B-2 – June 5, 2006 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Revisions to Troy City Code Chapter 18 (City Water Utility) 
   

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – December 15, 2005 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – April 5, 2006 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – April 5, 2006 
d) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – April 6, 2006 
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – May 4, 2006 
  

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of April, 2006 
  
J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
a) Letter of Appreciation from the Souvatzidis Family Regarding the Professionalism and 

Efforts of Lieutenant Scherlinck  
b) Letter to Chief Craft from St. Joseph Catholic Chaldean Church Thanking the Troy Police 

Department for Assistance with Traffic Control During Easter Services  
c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Diana Folleth, Capitol Barricading, Inc., 

Regarding the Assistance Provided by the Troy Police Department  
d) Letter to Chief Craft from Marty Torgler, Combine International, Inc., Commending the 

Performance and Professionalism of Lieutenant Chuck Pappas  
e) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Chris Gartner Regarding the Efforts and 

Professionalism of Officer Rushton      
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) Resolution from Rose Township – Retaining Local Control of Cable Franchising 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

J-5  Calendar 
 
-6  Communication from the Troy Police Department Regarding Troy Police Citizens J

Forum 
 

-7  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) – J
Quarterly Report for April, 2006 

 
-8  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding Cable Franchise J

Lawsuit Against the City of Troy 
 

-9  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding Carrie Zanoni v. City of J
Troy, Officer Jones, and Sergeant Stout 

 
-10  Communication from the Director of Building and Zoning Mark Stimac Regarding J

Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3463 Crooks Road 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
re encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 

or and Council. 
 

-1 Closed Session:  Review of Applications for Employment for the Position of City 

a
satisfactorily, to the May

CLOSED SESSION: 

L
Manager Permitted by Resolution #2006-04-188 

 

 
 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  May 15, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, May 22, 2006 CANCELLED ....................................... Regular City Council
Monday, June 5, 2006............................................................... Regular City Council 
Saturday, June 10, 2006 ............................................................ Special City Council 
Monday, June 19, 2006............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, July 10, 2006 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, July 24, 2006 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, August 14, 2006 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, August 28, 2006 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 11, 2006 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 18, 2006 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 25, 2006 ................................................... Regular City Council 

 
 



 1

Date: May 9, 2006 
 
To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – PRELIMINARY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL - 

PUD 5 Caswell Town Center – East Side of Rochester Road, South of South 
Boulevard, R-1D, B-3 and P-1, Section 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on March 28, 2006 and recommended 
preliminary PUD approval of PUD 5 Caswell Town Center.  City Management concurs with 
the Planning Commission and recommends preliminary PUD approval of PUD 5 Caswell 
Town Center. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The applicant proposes a mixed-use development including three (3) retail buildings totaling 
19,100 square feet in area, seventy-four (74) attached condominium units and fourteen (14) 
detached single-family homes.  The project utilizes a number of innovative sustainable design 
features including bioswales, pervious pavement and natural landscaping. 
 
A report was prepared for this project by the City’s Planning Consultant, Richard Carlisle of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  This report provides a detailed explanation of the project, 
including how the development meets the criteria for PUD approval.  The report recommends 
approval of PUD 5 Caswell Town Center. 
 
A neighborhood input meeting was held by the petitioner at Petruzello’s on July 28, 2005 
to solicit input from neighbors.  All residents within 300 feet of the subject property were 
mailed invitations.  Approximately 25 residents attended the meeting.  The treasurer of the 
Maple Forest of Troy Homeowners Association provided a letter of support for the project. 
 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Planned Unit Development/Site Plan Review, prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., 

dated April 27, 2006. 
3. Letter of Support from Treasurer of Maple Forest of Troy Homeowners Association, dated 

February 20, 2006. 
4. Miscellaneous correspondence from residents. 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 005 Caswell Town Center\CC Public Hearing Prelim App PUD-05 5 15 06.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

KS
WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIVE
R

N
O

IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROP. CASWELL TOWN CENTER



R
E

D
 R

U
N

AL
AM

ED
A

ALAMEDA

E SOUTH BLVD
E SOUTH BLVD

HOLLIS HALL LANE

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

HARTWIG
HARTWIG

SANDALWOOD

CAMBRIA

E
D

G
E

W
ATER

W SOUTH BLVD

ALAMEDA

B
A

R
A

B
E

A
U

E
C

K
E

R
M

A
N

A
LA

M
E

D
A

CADMUS

CADMUS

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

ED
G

E
W

ATE
R

PAINT CREEK

ALAM
ED

A

AMBERWOOD

PROPOSED PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
PROPOSED CASWELL TOWN CENTER
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD. & SOUTH BLVD.
SEC. 2  (PUD #5)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 100 200 30050
Feet



R
E

D
 R

U
N

AL
AM

ED
A

ALAMEDA

E SOUTH BLVD
E SOUTH BLVD

HOLLIS HALL LANE

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

HARTWIG
HARTWIG

SANDALWOOD

CAMBRIA

E
D

G
E

W
ATER

W SOUTH BLVD

ALAMEDA

B
A

R
A

B
E

A
U

E
C

K
E

R
M

A
N

A
LA

M
E

D
A

CADMUS

CADMUS

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

ED
G

E
W

ATE
R

PAINT CREEK

ALAM
ED

A

AMBERWOOD

(R-1T) One
Family Attached

Residential District

(PUD)
Planned Unit
Development

(E
-P

) E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n D

ist
ric

t

(O-1) Office
Building
District

(B-2) Community
Business District

(R-1C) One Family
Residential District

(P-1) Vehicular
Parking District

(B-3) General
Business
District

(H-S) Highway
Service
District

(R-1D) One Family
Residential District

(B-1) Local
Business
District

PROPOSED PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
PROPOSED CASWELL TOWN CENTER
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD. & SOUTH BLVD.
SEC. 2  (PUD #5)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 100 200 30050
Feet



brattopp
Text Box
FUTRUE LAND USE PLAN









































May 9, 2006 
 

 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Adoption of 2006/07 City Budget 
 
 
 
Attached please find a resolution to formally adopt the 2006/07 budget as per the April 24, 
2006 and May 1, 2006 budget discussions. 
 
The budget resolution reflects a total millage rate of 9.43, a reduction of .02 mills from the 
current year.  The proposed budget includes adjustments made at the May 1, 2006 special 
meeting.  At the direction of City Council $102,000 of Capital projects will be funded by the 
Unreserved Fund Balance of the Capital Projects Fund to make up for the .02 mill 
reduction. 
 
The final millage rate requirements can be summarized as follows: 
 
 General Operating   6.50 
 Refuse      .83 
 Capital    1.60 
 Debt       .50
 
 Total Millage Rate   9.43 
 
Please note that the final budget document will be prepared and submitted to City Council 
at the first meeting in July.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\05.15.06 – Adoption of 2006-07 City Budget 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, May 8, 2006, at City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 P.M. 
 
Pastor Steve Husava of Northfield Hills Baptist Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak (Absent) 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Howrylak  
 
Resolution #2006-05-197 
Moved by Lambert    
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Howrylak’s absence at the Regular and Closed Session City 
Council meetings of Monday, May 8, 2006 is EXCUSED due to being out of the county.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Mayor Schilling presented a Proclamation on behalf of the City of Troy in celebration of 

the Troy School District’s designation as one of the Best 100 Communities for Music 
Education  

b) Mayor Schilling presented Proclamations on behalf of the City of Troy to Law Day 2006 
Essay Winners: Varun Sarna, Xinwei Gu, and Michael Lin  

  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1970 Larchwood   
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner. There was no 
public comment. 
 
Resolution #2006-05-198 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact pedestrian 
and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Michael Fakoury, 1970 
Larchwood, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit 
outdoor parking of a Ford dump truck and open utility trailer is hereby APPROVED for two years. 
Yes: All-6 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
C-2 Withdrawal of Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5361 Livernois  
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2006-05-199 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council ACCEPTS the withdrawal of the request from Mr. Brian Van 
Tongeren, as indicated in the letter received from Melissa VanTongeren on May 2, 2006, 
eliminating the need for a public hearing. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
C-3 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 215-A) – Article 04.20.00 

and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and 
Provisions 

 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2006-05-200 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Article XL (General Provisions) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, be 
AMENDED to read as written in the Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 
215A), Version A, as recommended by the Planning Commission SUBJECT to the following 
additional amendments: LIMIT garage door height from 8 feet to 10 feet, REMOVE limit for 
number of detached accessory structures permitted, and CHANGE “or” to “and” in Section 
04.20.01. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Broomfield  
Absent: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:05 P.M. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:17 P.M. 
Council Member Broomfield departed at 9:17 P.M. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Preserves of Timbercrest Site 
Condominium, West of Fernleigh, South Side of Wattles Road, Section 24 – R-1C 

 
Resolution #2006-05-201 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That the amended preliminary site condominium plan, revised April 28, 2006, as 
submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development) for the development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium known as 
Preserves of Timbercrest Site Condominium, located west of Fernleigh, on the south side of 
Wattles Road, including 6 home sites, within the R-1C Zoning District, being 2.26 acres in size, 
is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2006-05-202 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Items E-2 and E-10, which shall be considered after Consent 
Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
E-3 City of Troy Proclamations:  
 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-3 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) Proclamation Celebrating the Troy School District – Named One of the Best 100 

Communities for Music Education  
b) Proclamation In Recognition of Maybelle Bombard on the Occasion of Her 100th Birthday 
c) National Association of Letter Carriers Food Drive Day – May 13, 2006  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Grass Seed and Hydro-

Seeding Mulch/Fertilizer       
 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase grass seed and hydro-seeding mulch/fertilizer is 
hereby AWARDED to the low total bidder, Tri-Turf of Farmington Hills, Michigan, for an 
estimated total cost of $12,099.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened April 18, 
2006, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – MITN Purchasing 

Cooperative Pager Rental Contract       
 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-4b 
 
WHEREAS, On November 3, 2003, a three (3) year contract with an option to renew for up to 
three (3) additional years to provide pager rental was awarded to the low bidder, Verizon 
Wireless Messaging Services of Lewisville, Texas for an estimated annual cost of $29,103.00 
(Resolution #2003-11-559);  
 
WHEREAS, Verizon Wireless has agreed to exercise the three-year option to renew the contract 
under the same pricing structure, terms, and conditions for participating members of the MITN 
(Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network) Cooperative; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with Verizon Wireless Messaging Services to provide pager rental services under 
the same pricing structure, terms and conditions for three years expiring December 1, 2009. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – National League of Cities 
(NLC) FAIR/Public Finance Panel Spring Steering Committee Meeting       

 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That those Council members interested are AUTHORIZED to attend the National 
League of Cities (NLC) FAIR/Public Finance Panel Spring Steering Committee Meeting on June 
15 - 17, 2006 in Cambridge, Massachusetts in accordance with accounting procedures of the 
City of Troy. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan, MiDeal Purchasing 

Agreement – SMARTMSG, Emergency Notification System 
 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to purchase SMARTMSG, an emergency notification system, which 
includes hardware and software from Codespear, AT&T, Hewlett Packard, and EDS are hereby 
APPROVED through State of Michigan MiDeal contracts for an estimated total project cost of 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

$37,620.00; and an estimated recurring cost of $3,531.96 per year to AT&T for the T1 line and 
$1,000 for SMARTMSG maintenance, at prices contained in Appendix 1, Detailed Cost 
Estimates, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders - Aggregates 
 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That one (1) year contracts for aggregates with an option to renew for one 
additional year are hereby AWARDED to the low bidders, B&W Landscape Supply of Clinton 
Twp., MI, Richmond Transport of Lenox, MI, Troy Aggregate Carriers of Sterling Heights, MI, Tri 
City Aggregates of Holly, MI, and Edw. C. Levy Company of Detroit, MI, at unit prices contained 
in the bid tabulation opened April 19, 2006, with contracts expiring April 30, 2007. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors submission 
of properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Irrigation Installation 
 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-4f 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish and install irrigation at the Troy Community Center 
(Proposal A) and Jaycee Park (Proposal B) is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, Stay Green 
Sprinklers, of Southfield, MI, for an estimated total cost of $75,965.00, CONTINGENT upon 
contractor submission of properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates, 
bonds, and all specified requirements. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if additional work is needed that could not be foreseen, such 
additional work is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost or 
$7,596.50.         
 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – 35,000 Cab and Chassis with Platform 
 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-4g 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase one (1) cab and chassis with platform Model Acterra 
by Sterling Truck is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Wolverine 
Truck Sales, Inc., of Dearborn, MI for an estimated total cost of $56,619.00.  
 
h) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Renewals Over $10,000.00 – Renewal of Membership in the Traffic 
Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland County 

 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-4h 
 
RESOLVED, That approval is GRANTED to pay the renewal of City of Troy's membership in the 
Traffic Improvement Association for the year 2006, in the amount of $25,500.00. Funds are 
available in the 2005-2006 Traffic Engineering budget, Account No. 446.7958. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

E-5 Assessment of Delinquent Accounts 
 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-5 
 
WHEREAS, Section 1.167 of Chapter 5 and Section 6 of Chapter 20 of the Ordinance Code of 
the City of Troy require that delinquent payments and invoices, as of April 1st of each year, shall 
be reported and the City Council shall certify same to the City Assessor who shall assess the 
same on the next annual City Tax Roll, to be collected as provided for collection of City Taxes; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 10.8 of the Troy City Charter provides for the collection of delinquent 
invoices through property tax collection procedures; and 
 
WHEREAS, A list of individual properties is on file in the Office of the Treasurer and comprises a 
summation of totals as follows: 
 

General Fund Invoices  
Including Penalties $13,539.12 

Special Assessments  
Including Penalties & Interest 7,057.76 

Water & Sewer Accounts  
Including Penalties  

 594,201.79 
  

TOTAL $614,798.67 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Assessor is hereby AUTHORIZED TO 
ASSESS these delinquent accounts on the annual City Tax Roll. 
 
E-6 Resolution Authorizing Request for Reimbursement: Oakland County West Nile 

Virus Fund 
 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council for the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, hereby 
AUTHORIZES the City of Troy Parks and Recreation Department, to seek reimbursement in the 
amount of $30,057.91 from the Oakland County West Nile Virus Fund for expenditures incurred 
while instituting proactive public health measures to reduce the population of infected 
mosquitoes in the environment.  
 

E-7 Transfer of Specially Designated Distributors (SDD) and Specially Designated 
Merchant (SDM) License for Troy Paradise Party Store  

 
(a) License Transfer 
 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-7a 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Troy Paradise, Inc., to transfer all stock interest in 2005 
Specially Designated Distributors (SDD) and Specially Designated Merchant (SDM) licensed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

corporation located at 5945 John R, Troy MI 48085, Oakland County by dropping Sadik J. Sadik 
through transfer of 100 shares of stock to new stockholder, Louay Joulakh; be CONSIDERED 
for APPROVAL. 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application BE RECOMMENDED for 
issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-7b 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with Troy Paradise, Inc., to transfer all stock interest in 2005 
Specially Designated Distributors (SDD) and Specially Designated Merchant (SDM) licensed 
corporation located at 5945 John R, Troy MI 48085, Oakland County by dropping Sadik J. Sadik 
through transfer of 100 shares of stock to new stockholder, Louay Joulakh; and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Private Agreement for Walnut Forest Site Condominiums – Project No. 05.906.3  
 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Jewel Construction Company, is hereby APPROVED 
for the installation of water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, paving, sidewalks, soil 
erosion and landscaping on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Approval of Purchase Agreement, Kensington Community Church, 1825 East 

Square Lake Road – Sidwell #88-20-02-427-029, Project No. 02.204.5- Parcel 27 – 
Square Lake/John R CMAQ Project  

 
Resolution #2006-05-202-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between Kensington Community Church and the 
City of Troy, having Sidwell #88-20-02-427-029, for the acquisition of right-of-way at 1825 East 
Square Lake Road is hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That authorization is hereby GRANTED to purchase the property 
in the Agreement referenced above in the amount of $77,500.00, plus closing costs. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2006-05-203  
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of April 17, 2006 
and the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of April 24, 2006 be APPROVED 
as submitted; and the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Special Meeting of May 1, 2006 be APPROVED 
as CORRECTED to reflect that City Council directed City Management to prepare 
recommendations as to where reductions would occur to allow for an .02 mill reduction; and the 
Minutes of the 10:04 PM Special Meeting of May 1, 2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
E-10 Approval of Placement of Temporary Sales Trailer Monarch Condominiums  
 
Resolution #2006-05-204 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Christopher Priddy of Joseph Freed and Associates for the 
placement of temporary office trailers on the site of the Monarch Condominium Development, is 
hereby APPROVED for a twelve month period in accordance with Chapter 47, House Trailers 
and Trailer Courts, Section 6.41(3), of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
F-3 Downtown Development Authority Bylaw Changes 
 
Resolution #2006-05-205 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority approved and recommended to City 
Council amendments to Article IV, Section 4 of the DDA Bylaws to strike “shall” and insert “may” 
in Line 1 “in the absence of” in Line 2 and in Line 3 strike “acting” and insert “Executive” to 
provide flexibility in the appointment of the Executive Director. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

BE IT RESOLVED, That City Council APPROVES the following amendments to Article IV, 
Section 4 of the DDA Bylaws to strike “shall” and insert “may” in Line 1, “in the absence of” in 
Line 2 and in Line 3 strike “acting” and insert “Executive” of the DDA Bylaws. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
F-4 Adoption of City Ordinance, Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance and the Landscape 

Design & Tree Preservation Standards 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That Chapter 28 – Tree and Plant Ordinance, a copy of which shall be INCLUDED 
in the original Minutes of this meeting, is hereby ADOPTED. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2006-05-206 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the Adoption of City Ordinance, 
Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance and the Landscape Design & Tree Preservation Standards until 
the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, June 19, 2006 and DIRECT City 
Management to solicit input from outside parties on this proposed ordinance. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Fleming  
No: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini    
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2006-05-207 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the Adoption of City Ordinance, 
Chapter 28 – Tree Ordinance and the Landscape Design & Tree Preservation Standards until 
the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, June 5, 2006. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

F-9 Emerald Food Service Contract 
 
Resolution #2006-05-208 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS the one-year contract with Emerald 
Food Service I, L.L.C. to provide a Café and Pro Shop operation in the Community Center, and 
food and beverage service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course expiring April 30, 2007. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Ethnic Issues Advisory 
Board 

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  

 
(b)  City Council Appointments 

 
Resolution #2006-05-209 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (9) 2 & 3 Year Terms 
 
Helen Yang Term Expires 07/01/06 (Student) 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
F-2 Bid Waiver – Workers’ Compensation Insurance Renewal for Fiscal Year 2006/2007 
 
Resolution #2006-05-210 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Municipal League has provided Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
for the City of Troy and the premium charged has been equitable based on the City’s 
experience; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

WHEREAS, It is desirable to continue the program through the Michigan Municipal League due 
to the positive experience of participating in the MML program;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and the net estimated premium cost of $365,449.00 is hereby APPROVED for Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance through the MML for the 2006-2007 fiscal year with a resulting final 
estimated cost to the City of $246,041.00 after applying a dividend distribution check in the 
amount of $119,408.00. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
F-5 Rescind Bid Award/Re-Award Contract – Mosquito Control 
 
Resolution #2006-05-211 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, On March 6, 2006, a one-year contract for mosquito control in the residential curb 
storm drains was awarded to the low bidder, Invaders Pest Control of Lincoln Park, MI, 
(Resolution # 2006-03-126-E-4d);  
 
WHEREAS, Invaders Pest Control has defaulted on the contract due to their inability to obtain 
the required insurance; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contract to treat 6,000 residential curb catch 
basins for mosquitoes be RESCINDED without prejudice from Invaders Pest Control, and RE-
AWARDED to the next low bidder meeting specifications, Tri-County Pest Control of St. Clair 
Shores, MI, for an estimated total cost of $24,000.00, at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened February 10, 2006, with the contract expiring December 31, 2006.  
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
F-6 Bid Waiver – Square Lake Water Main Replacement, Rochester Road to 700’ West 
 
Resolution #2006-05-212 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, Troelsen Excavating Co., 1395 Rochester Road, Troy, MI, is currently under 
contract with the City of Troy for Contract 05-6 and has considerable experience in water main 
replacement work; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troelsen’s quote for water main replacement of the existing water main on the north 
side of Square Lake Road, from Rochester Road to approximately 700 feet to the west was the 
lowest quote submitted and is considered to be competitive and reasonable for our area; 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a contract modification for water main 
replacement work is APPROVED and shall be ADDED to Contract 05-6 at a cost of 
$145,413.00;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
bonds and insurance and all specified requirements, and if additional work is required such 
additional work is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
F-7 Final Preliminary Plat Approval – Beachview Estates Subdivision, West Side of 

Beach, South of Long Lake – Section 18 
 
Resolution #2006-05-213 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That final approval of the Preliminary Plat for Beachview Estates Subdivision 
located on the west side of Beach Road, south of Long Lake Road, within Section 18, including 
8 lots within the R-1A Zoning District, is hereby GRANTED. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the Subdivision Agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
F-8 Schedule a Special Meeting for the Purpose of Deliberation and Action on the 

Selection of a City Manager 
 
Resolution #2006-05-214 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That a Special Meeting is SCHEDULED for Saturday, June 10, 2006 at 8:00 a.m. 
in the Council Boardroom of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan for the purpose 
of City Council deliberation and action on the selection of a City Manager. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Preliminary Planned Unit Development Approval – PUD-5 Caswell Town Center – East 

Side of Rochester Road, South of South Boulevard, R-1D, B-3 and P-1, Section 2 – May 
15, 2006 

Noted and Filed 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums: 
a) Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and Headquarter 

Companies 
Noted and Filed 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – December 12, 2005  
b) Troy Youth Council/Final – January 25, 2006  
c) Historic District Study Committee/Final – February 7, 2006 
d) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – February 15, 2006  
e) Downtown Development Authority/Final – February 15, 2006 
f) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – March 2, 2006  
g) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – March 8, 2006  
h) Planning Commission/Final (Corrected) – March 14, 2006 
i) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – March 15, 2006  
j) Downtown Development Authority/Final – March 15, 2006  
k) Traffic Committee/Final – March 15, 2006 
l) Library Advisory Board/Final – March 16, 2006 
m) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – March 21, 2006  
n) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – March 21, 2006  
o) Historic District Commission/Final – March 21, 2006 
p) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – March 28, 2006 
q) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – March 28, 2006  
r) Troy Youth Council/Draft – March 29, 2006 
s) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – April 4, 2006  
t) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – April 4, 2006 
u) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – April 4, 2006  
v) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – April 5, 2006 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

w) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – April 6, 2006  
x) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – April 10, 2006  
y) Planning Commission/Draft – April 11, 2006  
z) Planning Commission/Final – April 11, 2006 
aa) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – April 18, 2006  
bb) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – April 25, 2006  
cc) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – April 25, 2006  

Noted and Filed 

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) Report from Council Member Robin Beltramini on NLC’s Congressional Cities 

Conference, March 11-15, 2006 Washington D.C.  
b) Assessing Department – Comparison of Local Millage Rates 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Anthony Kleibecker, Muskegon Police Department, In 

Appreciation of the Assistance Provided During the Funeral of Officer Kevin Stier 
b) Letter of Appreciation to Sgt. Schaufler from Kirk Lytwyn Regarding the Efforts of Officer 

Tim Daniels  
c) Letter of Thanks to Officer Breidenich from Dick Minnick for Speaking at the 

Homeowner’s Association Annual Meeting 
d) Letter of Appreciation to Captain Murphy from Angela Allen Regarding the Assistance 

During the 5th Annual Players Wives Fashion Extravaganza  
e) Letter of Thanks to Officer Reynolds from Joseph Marchetti and Bruce Wade, Oakland 

Police Academy, for Participating in the Basic Detective/Investigator Program  
f) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew and Staff from Maureen Feighan, Detroit News, 

Regarding Election Training  
g) Letter of Thanks to Barb Holmes from Marilyn Mostek In Appreciation of the Efforts of the 

Clerk’s Office During the Passport Fair  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 

Notice of Hearing for the Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-
14838 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-7  Communication from the National Arbor Day Foundation Regarding Troy Being 

Named as a 2005 Tree City USA  
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 16 - 

J-8  Communication from the Planning Department Regarding Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment (ZOTA 214), Article IV and X, Group Child Care Homes in the R-1A 
through R-1E Districts – Child Care Provider Meeting  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-9  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 
Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case 
No. U-14275-R and Case No. U-14817 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-10  Communication from the Parks and Recreation Director Carol Anderson Regarding 
Employee Rates at Golf Courses and Aquatic Center 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-11  Communication from Birmingham-Bloomfield Symphony Orchestra 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-12  Communication from Oakland County Executive L. Brooks Patterson Regarding 

American Systems Technology and McGraw Wentworth being among the “50 
Companies to Watch in 2006” 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-13  Communication from Community Affairs Regarding Closed Captioning for Cable 
Channel 

Noted and Filed 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  
 
Resolution #2006-05-215 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by State Statute MCL 15.268 (e): Gerback v. City of Troy – Settlement Proposal and 
Gerback v Troy – Settlement Proposal.  
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Howrylak 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  May 8, 2006 
 

- 17 - 

The meeting RECESSED at 11:47 P.M. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED on Tuesday, May 9, 2006 at 12:09 A.M. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED on Tuesday, May 9, 2006 at 12:10 A.M. 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 

 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

 



PROCLAMATION 
18th ANNUAL CELEBRATION OF LIFE PICNIC   

WILLIAM BEAUMONT HOSPITAL 
 
WHEREAS, Today, approximately 10 million Americans are cancer survivors, thanks to 
advances in early cancer detection, treatment, and research; and 
 
WHEREAS, Over 48,250 new cancer cases are expected to be diagnosed in Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, National Cancer Survivors Day is a day to draw national attention to, and raise 
public awareness of, the challenges faced by cancer survivors.  Providing hope helps cancer 
patients fight harder and motivates them to seek medical treatment; and 
 
WHEREAS, Cancer survivors and their families will celebrate the 18th Annual Celebration of 
Life Picnic on Sunday, June 4, 2006 at William Beaumont Hospital in Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, William Beaumont Hospital plans this annual event to honor cancer survivors, 
their care givers and families as a show of strength and determination; and 
 
WHEREAS, William Beaumont Hospital will join over 700 communities throughout America in 
celebrating life; and 
 
WHEREAS, The great state of Michigan has an active, productive cancer survivor population, 
demonstrating that a cancer diagnosis is no longer an automatic death sentence;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy joins with 
William Beaumont Hospital to honor all cancer survivors for their strength and determination. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby proclaims 
Sunday, June 4, 2006 as National Cancer Survivors Day in the City of Troy.  
 
Presented this 4th day of June 2006. 
 

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03a



PROCLAMATION 
MENTAL HEALTH MONTH   

MAY 2006 
 
WHEREAS, Mental health is important at every stage of life, and in our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, Over 450 million people worldwide suffer from mental illness, causing astounding economic 
and social costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, Over forty million American adults and over thirteen million American children suffer from 
some form of identifiable mental disorder annually, many resulting in premature death; and 
 
WHEREAS, It has been documented in the past three years that 545,000 of the 2.5 million children in 
Michigan have a mental disorder; and 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County is working with the Michigan Mental Health Commission to transform 
Michigan’s mental health system into a national model; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mental illnesses affect and are affected by unremitting conditions such as cancer, heart and 
cardiovascular diseases, and HIV/AIDS.  Untreated, they bring about unhealthy behavior, non-
compliance with prescribed medial regimens, diminished immune functioning, and poor prognosis; and 
 
WHEREAS, The President’s New Freedom Commission proclaimed that mental disorders and mental 
health problems affect people of all backgrounds and all stages of life, and no one is immune; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby proclaims May 
2006 as Mental Health Month in the City of Troy.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy calls upon our agencies, schools, 
institutions and citizens to impart to our community increasing awareness and consideration of mental 
illness and the need for appropriate and accessible services for all people with mental illnesses.  
 
Signed this 15th day of May 2006. 
 

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03b



 
  May 8, 2006 
 
 
To:               John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:           Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject:   Agenda Item - Arbor Day 2007 – 2009 Proclamation 
 
In order for the City of Troy to be re-certified as Tree City USA by the National Arbor Day 
Foundation, a proclamation will need to accompany our application. 
 
Therefore, it is requested that a City proclamation be issued declaring that the observance 
of Arbor Day in the City of Troy, will be: 
 

May 4, 2007 
May 2, 2008 
May 1, 2009 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Ron Hynd, Landscape Analyst 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03c



May 5, 2006 
 
To:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
  Steven A. Pallotta, Director of Building Operations 

William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
Subject: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidder –  

3-Year Requirements of Emergency Repair and General Maintenance for 
Overhead Doors  
 

RECOMMENDATION 
On April 20, 2006, bid proposals were opened to provide emergency repair and general 
maintenance of overhead doors at various City locations for three (3) years.  City 
management recommends the contract be awarded to the low bidder, Garrett Door 
Company of Pontiac, MI, for an estimated cost of $20,918.00 per year, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation.  
 
The award is contingent upon contractor submission of properly executed bid 
documents, including insurance certificates and all specified requirements. 
 
BACKGROUND 

• The contract will provide for annual and semi-annual maintenance at buildings 
used by the Fire Department, Public Works Department, Parks and Recreation, 
Golf Course, and City Hall.  It will include both the doors and the openers. 

 
• The contract will also cover the emergency repair of those doors on an as 

needed basis. 
 

• All of Garrett’s references state they are very happy with the company’s service.  
 

• The City is awarding this contract on a low total basis due to potential conflicts 
with vendors if the award was made to one vendor for maintenance and another 
for repairs. 

BUDGET 
Funds are available in the various departments’ operations accounts. 
 
49 Vendors Notified via the MITN System 
 3 Bid Responses Received 
 2 No Bids: (1) Company cannot guarantee two-hour response time in an emergency. 

(1) Company does not feel it is prudent or safe to send only one service man on some of 
the required work as specified. 

 
Prepared by: Richard Sinclair, Assistant Fire Chief 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-15
Opening Date -- 4/20/06 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 4/24/06 OVERHEAD DOORS - Maintenance/Repair

VENDOR NAME: * Detroit Door & Hardware

PROPOSAL -- Furnish All Necessary Materials, Labor, and Equipment to provide Emergency Repair and General
      Maintenance of Overhead Doors at Various Locations in the City of Troy for Three (3) Years.

   ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: per Year 20,918$    28,600$       30,185$      

PROPOSAL C2: REGULAR & EMERGENCY REPAIRS
EMERGENCY REPAIRS

Regurlar Time 55.00$     84.00$       98.40$      
Overtime 82.50$     126.00$     147.60$    
Holiday Time 110.00$    126.00$     196.80$    
Crew Size 1 1 1

PROPOSAL C3: TRAVEL TIME

PER REPAIR CALL COMPLETE 27.50$     42.00$       92.00$      

SITE INSPECTION -- Y/N Yes Yes Yes
Date 4/11 & 4/13 4/18/06 4/4/06

No - Golf Course
INSURANCE -- Can Meet XX XX XX

Cannot Meet

TERMS Net 30

DELIVERY DATE --

WARRANTY

EXCEPTIONS Blank Blank Blank

ATTEST:
Charlene McComb * DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
Rick Sinclair
Linda Bockstanz ____________________________

Jeanette Bennett
NO BIDS: Purchasing Director
  Anderson Door Co
  Detroit Rolling Door & Gate Inc G:ITB-COT 06-15 OverheadDoors-Maintenance/Repair-

AS SPECIFIED

AS SPECIFIED

  Garrett Door 
Company

Net 30 Days Net 30 Days

Michigan Independent 
Door Company



May 5, 2006 
 
 
TO:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
     
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal 

Option– Aquatic Center Pool Maintenance And Repair Services   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On Monday, June 21, 2004, City Council approved a one (1) year contract for pool 
maintenance and repair services at the Troy Aquatic Center and Community Center, with 
two (2) one-year options to renew to the sole bidder, B & B Pool and Spas of Livonia, MI  
(Res#2004-06-329-E-6).  B & B Pool and Spas agreed to exercise the first one-year 
option to renew under the same price structure, terms and conditions as the 2004 
contract (Res#2005-06-299-E-4d).  
 
City management recommends exercising the second one-year renewal option for pool 
maintenance and repair with B & B Pool and Spas to expire June 30, 2007.  All prices 
terms and conditions will remain the same as the original contract.  
 
SUMMARY 
B & B Pool & Spas hourly rates are as follows: 
 Regular Time – Hour per Man   $125.00 (first hour) 
        $  75.00 per hour thereafter 
 Typical Crew Size     Two-man 
 Parts List Provided     Dated 1/1/03 
 
B & B Pool and Spas have not had to make any needed repairs this past year at the 
indoor or outdoor pools.  In the past when it had been required, they have completed 
repairs in a timely manner with excellent quality.   
 
MARKET SURVEY 
The Purchasing department did not conduct a market survey because the original 
solicitation had only one bidder, the sole bidder is holding prices at 2004 levels, and few 
companies in the area provide the needed services. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds to provide these services will be available in the respective Troy Family Aquatic 
Center Accounts #787.7802.070 and #787.7802.150 and Troy Community Center 
Accounts #755.7802.070 and #755.7802.150. 
 
 
Prepared by Ann Blizzard, Recreation Supervisor 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



campbellld
Text Box
E-05









campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
F-02





campbellld
Text Box
F-03





campbellld
Text Box
F-04





























 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
DATE:  May 9, 2005 
 
RE:  Amendment to Chapter 20 of the City Code (Water and Sewer Rates) 
 
 
Please find attached an amendment to Chapter 20 of the City Code reflecting the 
Water and Sewer Rate adjustment discussed during the 2006-07 budget study 
sessions. 
 
Due to the increased charges by the City of Detroit and the necessity to have sufficient 
funds to operate and maintain our system the following Water and Sewer Rates are 
recommended for City of Troy water bills rendered after July 1, 2006. 
 

 Current 
2005-06 
Rates 

 Proposed
2006-07 
Rates 

  
 

Adjustment 
      
Water $22.84  $23.40  $  .56 
      
Sewer   15.00    17.45  $2.45 
      
 $37.84  $40.85  $3.01 

 
 
The average water bill for a family of four will increase by approximately $11.74 per 
quarter. 

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

 20-1

CHAPTER 20 WATER AND SEWER RATES 
 
1. Definitions.  Unless the context specifically indicates otherwise, the following definitions shall apply 

in the interpretation of this Chapter. 
 
 (1) "Premises" shall mean each lot, parcel of land, or building having a connection to the Water 

Supply System or the Sewer System of the City, or is eligible for such a connection. 
 
 (2) "Department" shall mean the City Division of Water and Sewer. 
 
 (3) "Director" shall mean the Director of Public Works. 
 
 (Rev. 02-26-73) 
 
2. Water Benefit Fee.  Whenever any person shall seek a connection to a water main, as defined in 

Chapter 18 of this Code, he shall pay a benefit fee representing the cost of constructing such water 
main, except in those cases where the cost of construction has been financed by special 
assessment assessed to said premises or where construction has been financed by agreement 
with the City and paid for by the owner of the subject property.  The City Council shall from time to 
time by resolution determine the cost to be borne by any premises which will benefit by a 
connection thereto. 

 
 No permit for any connection to any water main shall be granted until the owner of the premises 

shall pay or agree to pay the benefit fee attributed to such property. 
 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 
 
3. Water Improvement Fund Fee.  Anyone seeking to make a connection to any public water main 

within the City shall first obtain a permit to make such connection from the Department.  Prior to 
issuance of said permit the applicant must pay a Water Improvement Fund Fee representing the 
cost of construction of that portion of the City-wide water system attributable to the proportionate 
benefit to be received by the applicant's property. 

 
 (Rev. 02-04-80) 
 
3.01 Computation of Water Improvement Fund Fee.  The Water Improvement Fund Fee shall be based 

on a unit factor system wherein each single-family residence shall be classified as one unit. 
 
 Other occupational uses shall be charged on multiples of units as may be determined by resolution 

of the City Council from time to time. Said units and multiples thereof will be established and 
computed on the same basis as for the Sanitary Trunk and Interceptor Connection Fee contained 
further in this Chapter and the number of units charged to a premise shall be the same for both 
water and sanitary sewer. 

 
 The Water Improvement Fund Fee shall be in the amount of $700.00 per unit, less any credit 

determined under Section 3.02 hereof. 
 
 (Rev. 01-01-82) 
 
3.02 Credit on Water Improvement Fund Fee.  In the case of any premises which have been subject to 

special assessment for construction of a water main, a credit shall be allowed on the water 
improvement fund fee for the amount of such special assessment levied for indirect availability of 



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

 20-2

water service. The amount of a special assessment for indirect availability of water service shall be 
that amount in excess of the amount of that assessment attributable to direct benefit received by 
the parcel originally assessed for immediate availability of water service.  The assessor shall 
prepare and submit to the Council for approval, by resolution, a schedule showing the amount of all 
such assessments for indirect availability of water service presently existing and the parcels 
affected thereby.  Each premise shall receive a credit for its pro-rata share of the assessment as 
shown by said schedule.  No such credit shall exceed one hundred (100%) percent of the water 
improvement fund fee for any premises.  No such credit shall be given for any premises connection 
to the water supply system after July 1, 1993. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 
 
4. Water Connection Fee.  A Water Connection Fee will be charged to each premise where the City 

provides labor, equipment or materials to make a connection to the water main and/or to furnish or 
install a water meter.  Such fees shall not be less than the cost of the materials, installation and 
overhead attributable to the particular service. 

 
 The City Council will establish, by resolution, such fees in accordance with the size of service 

and/or meter to be furnished. The Water Connection Fee shall be paid or the applicant shall make 
an agreement to pay the Fee prior to issuance of a connection permit by the City. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 
 
5. Basis of Charges.  All water service shall be charged for on the basis of water consumed, as 

determined by the meter installed by the Department in the premises of water or sewage disposal 
service customers.  No free water service or sewage disposal service shall be furnished to any 
person. 

 
 (Rev. 02-26-73) 
 
5.01 Water Rates.  Charges for water service to each premises within the City connected with the water 

supply system, for each quarterly (3 month) period, shall be  $22.84 $23.40 per 1,000 cubic feet. 
Minimum quarterly bills shall be  $18.50 $18.95. 

 
Private fire service lines shall be billed at a rate equal to four (4) times the minimum water bill. 

 
 Charges for water service to premises outside the City shall be 150% of those for water service 

within the City. 
 
 (Rev. 05-16-05)  
 
 Private fire service lines shall be billed at a rate equal to four (4) times the minimum water bill. 
 
 Charges for water service to premises outside the City shall be 150% of those for water service 

within the City. 
 
 (Rev. 05-13-02) 



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

 20-3

5.02 Sewer Rates 
 
 A. Charges for sewage disposal, operation and maintenance service shall be levied upon all 

premises having any sewer connection with the public sewers. 
 
  Those premises using metered water shall pay $15.00 $17.45 dollars per 1,000 cubic foot 

of water consumption for sewage disposal and maintenance charges. 
   
  (Rev. 05-10-04) 
  
  Where there is no water meter the sewage disposal and maintenance charges shall be   

$75.00 $87.25. 
 
  (Rev. 05-10-04) 
 
  Water lines used solely for fire protection shall be exempt from sewage disposal and 

maintenance charges. 
 
  (Rev. 05-13-02) 

 
 B. 1. Rates and charges established are based upon methodology which complies with 

applicable EPA regulations. 
 
  2. Users of the system must be individually notified annually of costs for operation, 

maintenance, replacement and debt service. 
 
 C. A ready to serve charge shall be levied on each quarterly bill in the amount of $12.15 

$14.13 dollars less any amount for current consumption up to the maximum of the ready to 
serve charge. 

 
 (Rev. 05-10-04) 
 
5.03 Service to City.  The City shall pay the same water and sewer rates for service to it as would be 

payable by a private customer for the same service, except that for water furnished through fire 
hydrants and for the availability of such water, the City will pay the total sum of $130,000.00 
$134,000.00 per year, which charge is hereby determined to be the reasonable cost and value of 
such service. All such charges for service shall be payable quarterly from the current funds of the 
City, or from the proceeds of taxes. 

 
(Rev. 05-16-05) 

 
5.04 Billing.  Charges for all water service and sewage disposal service shall be billed and collected 

quarterly by the City Treasurer.  Water bills rendered shall be immediately due and payable and 
may be paid without penalty up to and including the fifteenth day of the month when rendered, and 
shall thereafter be subject to a ten (10%) per cent penalty.  Bills shall be sent to "Occupant" at the 
metered address, unless other arrangements are made by the owner. 

 
 (Rev. 02-04-80) 



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

 20-4

 
6. Collection.  The Director is hereby authorized to enforce the payment of charges for water service 

to any premises by discontinuing the water service to such premises and the payment of charges 
for sewage disposal service to any premises may be enforced by discontinuing either the water 
service or the sewage disposal service to such premises, or both, and an action of assumpsit may 
be instituted by the City against the customer. The charges for water service and sewage disposal 
service which, under the provisions of Act 94, Public Acts of 1933 of the State of Michigan, as 
amended, are made a lien on the premises to which furnished, are hereby recognized to constitute 
such lien; and the City Treasurer shall, annually, on April 1, certify all unpaid charges for such 
services furnished to any premises which, on the 31st day of March preceding, have remained 
unpaid for a period of six (6) months, to the City Assessor who shall place the same on the next tax 
roll of the City.  Such charges so assessed shall be collected in the same manner as general City 
Taxes.  In cases where the City is properly notified in accordance with said Act 94 of 1933, that a 
tenant is responsible for water or sewage disposal service charges, no such service shall be 
commenced or continued to such premises until there has been deposited with the City Treasurer, 
a sum sufficient to cover three (3) times the average quarterly bill for such premises as estimated by 
the Director.  Where the water service to any premises is turned off to enforce the payment of water 
service charges or sewage disposal service charges, the water service shall not be resumed until 
all delinquent charges have been paid and a deposit as in the case of tenants is made, and there 
shall be a water turn-on charge of Twenty-Five ($25.00) Dollars.  In any other case where, in the 
discretion of the City Treasurer, the collection of charges for water or sewage disposal service may 
be difficult or uncertain, he may require a similar deposit.  Such deposits may be applied against 
any delinquent water or sewage disposal service charges and the application thereof shall not affect 
the right of the Treasurer or Director to turn off the water service and/or sewer service, to any 
premises for any delinquency thereby satisfied.  No such deposit shall bear interest and such 
deposit, or any remaining balance thereof, shall be returned to the customer making the same 
when he shall discontinue receiving water and sewage disposal service or, except as to tenants at 
to whom notice of responsibility for such charges has been filed with the City, when any eight (8) 
successive quarterly bills shall have been paid by said customer with no delinquency. 

 
 (Rev. 02-04-80) 
 
7. Sanitary Trunk and Interceptor Connection Fee.  Anyone seeking to make a connection to any 

sanitary sewer system within the City of Troy shall first obtain a permit to make such connection 
from the Building Department.  Prior to issuance of said permit the applicant must pay to the City a 
Sanitary Trunk and Interceptor Connection Fee representing the cost of construction of that portion 
of the City-wide sewer system attributable to the proportionate benefit to be received by the 
applicant's property. 

 
 (Rev. 02-26-73) 
 
7.01 Computation.  The Sanitary Trunk and Interceptor Connection Fee shall be based on a unit factor 

system of computation wherein each single-family residence shall be classified as one unit. Other 
occupational uses shall be charged on multiples of units as may be determined by resolution of the 
City Council from time to time.  The Sanitary Trunk and Interceptor Connection Fee shall be in the 
amount of $200.00 per unit. 

 
 (Rev. 01-01-82) 



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

 20-5

 
8. Sewer Benefit Fee.  Whenever any person shall seek a connection to a public sewer, as defined in 

Chapter 19 of this Code, he shall pay a sewer benefit fee in lieu of paying the cost of constructing 
such public sewer, except in those cases where the cost of construction has been financed by 
special assessments assessed to said premises, or by agreement and paid by the owner thereof.  
The City Engineer shall determine which properties shall be allowed or required to tap the public 
sewer based on sewer depth, distance from the public sewer, and other engineering and cost 
factors. The sewer benefit fee, representing the cost of construction of that portion of the City-wide 
sewer system attributable to the proportionate benefit to be received by the applicant's property, 
shall be determined by resolution of the City Council from time to time. No permit for any connection 
to any public sewer shall be granted until the owner of the premises shall pay or agree to pay the 
sewer benefit fee attributable to such property. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 
 
9. Inspection Fee.  An inspection charge of $15.00 shall be included in the cost of a water connection 

permit for all single family residences:  Other inspection fees shall be based on estimates of actual 
cost to the City for labor, materials and contingencies and shall be computed by the Chief Building 
Inspector for Sewer and the Superintendent of Public Services for Water. 

 
 (Rev. 02-04-80) 
 
10. Payment of Fees.  The Sanitary Trunk and Interceptor Connection Fee, the Sewer Benefit Fee and 

Sewer Permit Fee (collectively in this Section called "Sewer Fees") and/or the Water Improvement 
Fund Fee, Water Benefit Fee, and the Water Connection Fee (collectively in this Section called 
"Water Fees") shall be paid as follows: 

 
 (Rev. 02-26-73) 
 
10.01 Cash payments shall be made for all Sewer Fees payable for new buildings constructed in areas 

where public sewers, as defined in Chapter 19 of this Code, are available, or construction of same 
has been approved by the City Council.  No building permit shall be issued for construction of a new 
building until all Sewer Fees have been paid and the sewer permit has been obtained. 

 
 The above regulation is also applicable to building permits for additions to existing structures other 

than single-family residences.  Cash payment for Sewer Fees shall be made for that portion of the 
structure to be added, while extended payment arrangements as hereinafter provided may be made 
for that portion of the structure existing prior to the availability of sewer. Regardless of the method of 
payment chosen by the owner, sewer permits for the entire structure must be obtained prior to 
issuance of building permits for such additions. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

 20-6

 
10.02  Cash payments shall be made for all Water Fees payable for new buildings constructed in areas 

where public Water Mains, as defined in Chapter 18 of this Code, are available, or construction of 
same has been approved by the City Council, and where the Water Main is to be used for such new 
building.  When the Water Main is to be used to serve such new building, no building permit shall be 
issued for construction until all Water Fees have been paid and a water permit has been issued. 

 
 The above regulation is also applicable to building permits for additions to existing structures other 

than single family residences and where the Water Main is in use or shown to be used by the 
addition.  Cash payment for Water Fees shall be made for that portion of the structure to be added, 
while extended payment as hereinafter provided may be made for that portion of the structure 
existing prior to the availability of water. Regardless of the method of payment chosen by the owner, 
when the Water Main is to be used, water permits for the entire structure must be obtained prior to 
issuance of building permits for such additions. 

 
 (Rev. 09-25-78) 
 
10.03  Sewer fees and/or water fees for buildings existing in areas where sewers or water taps were not 

available may be paid for at the time of permit issuance, or, at the option of the owner, may be paid 
in equal installments, including interest at 6% per annum on the unpaid balance for a period not to 
exceed 40 years; one installment shall be billed with each bill for water or sewer service. 

 
 Additional principal payments may be made with any installment. 
 
 (Rev. 01-20-75) 
 
11. Service Leads.  When a sewer lead has not been provided to make an authorized connection to an 

available sewer, it shall be the responsibility of the benefiting property to provide same. 
 
 (Rev. 06-09-86) 
 
12. Unauthorized Connections.  In the event any connection is made to the City Sewer system without 

a permit having been obtained from the City Building Department for such connection, a charge of 
double the current Interceptor Connection Fee will be charged to the owners of the property so 
connected and will be collected in the same manner prescribed by the Charter for the collection of 
unpaid City taxes. 

 
 (Rev. 12-03-79) 
 
13. Additional Charges.  Those premises assigned sewage disposal charges for industrial cost 

recovery and/or high strength surcharges as required by Federal Law, shall make payment for said 
charges as herein provided for water and sewage disposal services. 

 
 (Rev. 02-04-80) 



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

 20-7

 
14. Definitions: 
 
 (a) Industrial User:  shall mean a source of discharge under regulations issued pursuant to the 

Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C. 1342, which source originates from, but is 
not limited to, facilities engaged in industry, manufacturing, business, trade or research, 
including the development, recovery or processing of natural resources. 

 
 (b) Commercial User:  shall mean all non-domestic sources of indirect discharge, other than 

industrial users, as defined herein including but not limited to the following:  A publicly or 
privately owned facility where persons are engaged in the exchange or sale of goods or 
services, hospitals, retail establishments and facilities operated by state governments. 

 
 (c) Residential User:  shall include schools, churches, municipal buildings and structures 

designed for habitation. Structures designed for habitation shall include but not be limited to 
single-family homes, apartment buildings, condominiums, town houses and mobile homes. 

 
 (d) Non-residential User:  shall mean any user other than an industrial user, a commercial user 

or a residential user. 
 
15. High Strength Surcharge:  A high strength surcharge shall be levied against all industrial and 

commercial users, with the exception of restaurants, which users contribute sewage to the  system 
with pollutant concentration levels exceeding the following: 

 
 (A) 275 milligrams per liter (mg/1) of Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) 
 
 (B) 350 milligrams per liter (mg/1) of Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 
 
 (C) 12 milligrams per liter (mg/1) of Phosphorus (P)  
 
 (D) 100 milligrams per liter (mg/1) of Fats, Oils and Grease (FOG) 
 
 (Rev. 04-22-85) 
 
16. Non-residential Flow Surcharge:  The City of Troy shall pay a quarterly non-residential surcharge as 

established from time to time by the County of Oakland, State of Michigan, or its authorized 
representative, the Detroit Water and Sewer Department, and adopted by Resolution of the Troy 
City Council. The non-residential surcharge shall be based on the total number and size of water 
meters used by non-residential users of the system.  Where metered water is not available, the 
Assigned Water Meter size shall be reported by the City in accordance with the following schedule: 



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

 20-8

 
  Units Assigned in Accordance 
  With the Current Oakland County 
  Department of Public Works 
  Schedule of Unit Assignment    Assigned Water 
  Factors      Meter Size  
 
 
    1 - 4      5/8" and 3/4" 

   5 - 10       1" 
    11 – 20      1-1/2" 
    21 - 32      2" 
    33 - 64      3" 
    65 - 100      4" 
   101 - 200      6" 
 
 The City shall report quarterly the total number and size of water meters used by non-residential 

users or alternatively, the Assigned Water Meter size pursuant to the above schedule. 
 
17. Sanitary Wastewater Disposal Charge:  The City of Troy shall pay a sanitary wastewater disposal 

charge.  This charge shall be based on readings of the master water meters serving the 
Southeastern Oakland County Communities. 

 
 From these meter readings the water consumption of each municipality shall be determined.  Water 

consumption shall be the basis for sanitary wastewater disposal charges using the formula of rate 
per 1,000 cubic feet, said rate as established from time to time by the Oakland County Drain 
Commissioner, and adopted by Resolution of the Troy City Council. If the City has individual sewer 
customers with metered sewage, the City shall report within 15 days following the end of each 
calendar quarter the total metered sewage in the City, in lieu of water consumption.  Based on the 
quarterly report, each community shall pay a charge per 1,000 cubic feet of metered sewage, as 
established from time to time by Oakland County or the Detroit Water and Sewer Department, and 
adopted by Resolution of the Troy City Council.  The rate for sewage disposal based on the 
metered sewage method shall be 110% of the rate established for the master meter water method.  

 
18. Storm Water Disposal Charge: 
 
 (1) Evergreen-Farmington Sewage Disposal System:  The City shall pay a charge for disposal 

of storm water in proportion to the area in the City served by combined sewers in the 
Evergreen-Farmington Sewage Disposal System and by the recorded duration of the spill at 
the Acacia and Bloomfield Regulators.  Said charge will be as established from time to time 
by Oakland County or the Detroit Water and Sewer Department, and acknowledged by 
Resolution of the Troy City Council. 



Chapter 20 - Water and Sewer Rates 
 

 20-9

 
 (2) Southeastern Oakland County Sewage Disposal System S.O.C.S.D.S.):  The entire flow 

from the S.O.C.S.D.S. enters the Detroit treatment plant through the Dequindre Interceptor, 
which contains a master meter.  The metered flow is reduced by the amount of water 
consumption for the system.  This reduced flow shall be multiplied by a land use factor to 
determine the City's share of the flow.  Storm water disposal charges shall be determined by 
using a formula of rate per 1,000 cubic feet, as established from time to time by the Oakland 
County Drain Commissioner, and acknowledged by Resolution of the Troy City Council. 

 
  (Rev. 04-22-85) 



 
 
DATE:   May 9, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal, Renewal 

6881 Westaway 
 
 
 
 
On May 16, 2005, City Council approved an appeal for one year for the outdoor storage 
of a commercial vehicle on the residential property at 6881 Westaway. That approval 
will soon expire. We have contacted the owner and he was given the option to remove 
the vehicle or appeal to City Council for renewal of the relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our contact, Mr. Ermie has filed an appeal. The appeal requests that a 
public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance. A public hearing has been 
scheduled for your meeting of June 5, 2006. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 



 



 



 1

Date: May 9, 2006 
 
To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
From: Douglas J. Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (JUNE 5, 2006) – 

REZONING APPLICATION (Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South side of 
Vanderpool, West of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E 
to B-2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The rezoning application is compatible with surrounding land uses and zoning districts.  Further, 
the request is consistent with the existing B-2 zoning located south of Vanderpool.  The 
Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on April 11, 2006 and recommended 
approval of the rezoning request.  City Management agrees with the Planning Commission and 
recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO FUTURE LAND USE PLAN 
 
The subject property is designated as non-center commercial on the Future Land Use Plan.  
Both the B-3 and H-S zoning districts correlate with the non-center commercial future land use 
designation.  Most of the uses permitted in the proposed B-2 district are permitted in the B-3 
district; however, the B-3 district includes a wider range of uses.  Within the B-3 district, the front 
yard setback is 40 feet and the rear yard setback is 30 feet.  The proposed B-2 district setbacks 
are greater; the front yard setback is 75 feet and the rear yard setback is 30 feet.  Therefore, the 
potential land uses are less intensive within the proposed B-2 district and the building setbacks 
are greater, when compared to the future planned B-3 district.  
 
The proposed rezoning would extend the existing western boundary of B-2 property to line up 
precisely with the abutting property to the south, which is also within the B-2 zoning district.  
This proposed B-2 boundary extends slightly further to the west than the B-3 district to the north 
and across Vanderpool.  However, the depth of the proposed B-2 zoning towards the west is 
consistent with properties along the western side of the Rochester Road corridor, between Big 
Beaver and Wattles.   
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owners of the property are Glenn and Barbara Carter.  The applicant is John Glasnak of 
Troy-Rochester Properties, LLC. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the south side of Vanderpool, west of Rochester Road and east of 
Ellenboro, in Section 22. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 0.5 acres in area.  

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



 2

Parcel History: 
The applicant submitted an application to rezone the subject parcel on May 16, 2005.  The 
Planning Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request on June 14, 2005.  City 
Council denied the request on August 1, 2005.  The applicant modified the site plan by 
eliminating the entry drive on Vanderpool.   
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject parcel is a single family residence. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1E One Family Residential. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-2 Community Business. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to acquire three City-owned remnant parcels that abut the subject 
parcel to the east.  The four parcels will be combined and developed as a Dunkin Donuts 
restaurant.  Rezoning and combining these parcels creates a desirable commercial site.  The 
applicant has provided a site plan that indicates all traffic will enter the site from Rochester 
Road.  The site plan also proposes a 6-foot high screen wall on the western property line and 
significant landscaping on the east side of the wall.   
 
The remnant parcels are Lot 42 and part of Lots 43 and 45 of Supervisor’s Plat Number 17.  
The subject parcel is part of Lot 41 of Supervisor’s Plat Number 17.  The purchase of the 
remnant parcels will be approved upon the rezoning request being granted. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single-family residential. 
South: Troy Point Plaza (retail strip mall). 
East: Vacant. 
West: Single-family residential. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1E One Family Residential and B-3 General Business. 
South: B-2 Community Business. 
East: B-2 Community Business. 
West: R-1E One Family Residential. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed B-2 Zoning District and Potential Build-out Scenario:  
 

PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-1 Districts as Principal Uses 
Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions,  
 
Any retail business whose principal activity is the sale of merchandise in an enclosed 
building, except for those limited to or first permitted in the B-3 General Business District. 



 3

Any service establishment of a showroom or workshop nature, of an electrician, decorator, 
dressmaker, tailor, baker, painter, upholsterer; or an establishment doing radio or home 
appliance repair, photographic studios and reproduction and similar service establishments 
that require a retail adjunct. 
 
Business establishments which perform services on the premises, such as but not limited 
to:  banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, loan companies, insurance offices, 
travel services, and real estate offices. 
 
Private clubs, fraternal organization, and lodge halls. 
 
Restaurants, or other places serving food or beverage, except those having the character of 
a drive-in or open front store. 
 
Theaters, assembly halls, concert halls or similar places of assembly, when conducted 
completely within enclosed buildings. 
 
Business schools and colleges or private schools operated for profit, not including nursery 
schools. 
 
Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
Drive-up Windows or Service Facilities, as Accessory to Principal Uses Within B-2 Districts, 
Apart from Restaurants 
 
Outside seating areas, of twenty (20) seats or less, for restaurants or other food service 
establishments 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 
Drive-Up Windows or Service Facilities, as an Accessory to Restaurants Permitted Within 
this District 
 
Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating, rinks, indoor tennis courts, 
athletic or health clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation, when the subject 
uses are located at least 100 feet from any Residential District. 
 
Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-2 District as follows: 
 
A. Retail sales of plant material not grown on the site, and sales of lawn furniture, 

playground equipment and garden supplies. 
B. Recreational space providing shuffleboard, miniature golf, tennis, or similar outdoor 

recreation, when part of a planned development. 
C. Outdoor driver training and testing areas on or abutting the site of a driving school. 



 4

Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments. 
 
Facilities within a retail establishment for installation, in vehicles, of items sold at retail at that 
location. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Vanderpool. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on the 
property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial.  The Non-
Center Commercial designation has a Primary Correlation with the B-3 General Business 
Zoning District and a Secondary Correlation with the H-S Highway Service Zoning District.  The 
Non-Center Commercial designation does not correlate with the B-2 Zoning District.  However, 
the B-2 district is a commercial zone as is B-3, and the B-2 district is less intense in terms of 
potential uses than the B-3 district.  Further, the request is an expansion of an existing B-2 
zoning district.  The Rochester Road frontage has been planned for Non-Center Commercial 
since 1965. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
The B-2 Local Business Zoning District does not have Location Standards to apply to rezoning 
requests. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Statement of Applicant. 
3. Letters of opposition (3). 

 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z 704 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-704 DUNKIN DONUTS SEC 22\CC Report to Announce PH_05 15 06.doc 
 
 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

SUBJECT PARCEL



VANDERPOOL

TORPEY

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

R
O

C
H

E
STER

W
IN

TH
RO

P

CHARRINGTON

REZONING REQEUST
PROPOSED DUNKIN DONUTS
FROM R-1E TO B-2
E SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD., N OF BIG BEAVER
SEC. 22  (Z-704 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 10050
Feet



VANDERPOOL

TORPEY

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

R
O

C
H

E
STER

W
IN

TH
RO

P

CHARRINGTON

(H-S) Highway
Service District

(R-1E) One Family
Residential District

(B-3) General
Business
District

(B-2) Community
Business District

REZONING REQEUST
PROPOSED DUNKIN DONUTS
FROM R-1E TO B-2
E SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD., N OF BIG BEAVER
SEC. 22  (Z-704 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 10050
Feet





















DATE:  May 10, 2006 
  
 
 
 
TO:  John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
    
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Director of Public Works 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Revisions to Troy City Code Chapter 18 (City Water Utility) 
 
 
 
City Staff have been working on updating Chapter 18, City Water Utility.  We request 
that City Council consider the enclosed revision to Chapter 18. 
 
We recommend that the City of Troy institute permanent outdoor annual watering 
restrictions.  Outdoor watering accounts for a significant portion of the peak water usage 
factor that is used to set the City of Troy water rates by the Detroit Water and Sewerage 
Department.  Higher peak usage means higher water rates.  Outdoor watering also 
accounts for a significant loss of water pressure in some areas of the city during the 
summer months.   
 
Converting to a mandatory odd/even day watering schedule for all customers on the 
public water supply would help even out the water usage, and assist in keeping rates 
down and pressure up. Implementation will include extensive customer notification and 
education on the need for such restrictions. 
 
The proposed revisions to Chapter 18 (Section 12) of the Ordinance are attached for 
your consideration.   
 
We will provide any additional information that you request on this matter. 
 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to form and legality:          
     Lori G. Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Matthew Kapcia, Cross Connection Control Inspector 

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 18 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Section 18 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Section 12 of Chapter 18 shall be amended as follows:   
 
Outdoor Water Use Restrictions 
 
12.01 From Memorial Day through Labor Day each year, watering restrictions 
shall be in effect for the purposes of evening out the City water pressures and the 
Peak water usage.  

A. Outdoor watering, including the sprinkling of lawns and landscaping 
and filling swimming pools, washing cars and all outdoor watering 
tasks shall only be allowed for properties with even-numbered 
addresses on even-numbered calendar dates within a month and 
for properties with odd-numbered addresses on odd-numbered 
calendar dates.  

B. Watering of new sod or landscaping, one year old or less, is 
exempt from the odd/even water restriction. 

 
A.  Whenever the Manager of the City receives notification from the Detroit Water 
and Sewerage Department in conjunction with the Water and Radiological 
Protection Division of the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, or it is 
determined by the City Council, that the supply or pressure demand for water 
cannot be accommodated and general welfare is likely to be endangered, or 
conditions within the water system of the City are likely to endanger the general 
welfare of the City, the Manager shall determine that a state of emergency exists 
and prescribe the following emergency regulations which shall apply in the City 
for all properties connected to the City water system:  For the duration of the 
declared state of emergency, outdoor watering, including the sprinkling of laws 
and landscaping and filling swimming pools, washing cars, and all outdoor 
watering tasks shall only be allowed for properties with even numbered 
addresses on even numbered calendar dates within a month and for properties 
with odd numbered addresses on odd numbered calendar dates.  Watering of 
new sod or landscaping, one year old or less is exempt from the odd/even water 
restriction.  



 
 12.02. Whenever the Manager receives notification from the Detroit Water 
and  
Sewerage Department or the City Council, in conjunction with the Drinking Water 
and Radiological Protection Division of the  the  Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality that provisions in subsection A are not sufficient,or  the 
current  conditions within of of the water system of the City are likely to endanger 
the general welfare of the City, the following  then additional  emergency 
regulations can be imposed shall apply in the City for all properties connected to 
the City water system:  Sprinking of lawns and landscaping and all outdoor water 
use shall not be allowed.   
 
 
C. The City and the Detroit Water and Sewerage Department shall, or at its 
option the City Council may, Wwithin 24 hours of notification, as set forth above, , 
cause any additional emergency these regulations shall to be posted at the City 
offices and publicly announced by means of broadcasts or telecasts by the 
stations with a normal operating range covering the City.  The announcement 
may also , and may cause such announcement to be further declared in 
newspapers of .general  
circulation when feasible.  The regulations shall become effective immediately 
after notice of enforcement of the ordinance as posted at the City offices. Upon 
the posting and publication of the additional emergency regulations. Upon 
notification from the Detroit Water and Sewerage Department in conjunction 
connection  with the Drinking Water and Radiological Protection Division of the 
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality or the City Council, that the 
emergency regulations are no longer necessary, the City shall cause a public 
announcement lifting the water restrictions. 
 

D. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed responsible for a municipal civil infraction, in 
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 100 of the City of Troy 
ordinances,  and will be responsible to pay a fine not to exceed five 
hundred dollars ($500) for each violation.   

 
E.It shall be the responsibility of the City to enforce this ordinance.   

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 



effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2006 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 



Clean Copy  
 
Outdoor Water Use Restrictions  
 
12.01 From Memorial Day through Labor Day each year, watering restrictions 

shall be in effect for the purposes of evening out the City water pressures 
and the Peak water usage.  

 
A. Outdoor watering, including the sprinkling of lawns and 

landscaping and filling swimming pools, washing cars and all 
outdoor watering tasks shall only be allowed for properties 
with even-numbered addresses on even-numbered calendar 
dates within a month and for properties with odd-numbered 
addresses on odd-numbered calendar dates.  

 
B. Watering of new sod or landscaping, one year old or less, is 

exempt from the odd/even water restriction. 
 
12.02 Whenever the Manager receives notification from the Detroit Water and 

Sewerage Department or the City Council or the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality that current conditions of the water system of the 
City are likely to endanger the general welfare of the City, then additional 
emergency regulations can be imposed on all properties connected to the 
City water system, including an absolute temporary ban on Sprinkling of 
lawns and landscaping and all outdoor water use.   

 
12.03 Within 24 hours of notification, as set forth above, any additional 

emergency regulations shall be posted at the City offices and publicly 
announced by means of broadcasts or telecasts by the stations with a 
normal operating range covering the City.  The announcement may also 
be further declared in newspapers of general circulation when feasible.  
The regulations shall become effective immediately upon the posting and 
publication of the additional emergency regulations.  Upon notification 
from the Detroit Water and Sewerage Department in connection with the 
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality or the City Council, that 
the emergency regulations are no longer necessary, the City shall cause a 
public announcement lifting the water restrictions. 

 
12.04 Any person, firm or corporation violating any provision of this ordinance 

shall be deemed responsible for a municipal civil infraction, in accordance 
with the provisions of Chapter 100 of the City of Troy ordinances, and will 
be responsible to pay a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500) for 
each violation.   

 
 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01a





ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
APRIL 5, 2006 

 1

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, April 5, 2006, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  Angela 
Done called the Meeting to order at 7:08 P.M. 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member A. Done, member  
   A. Fuhrman, alternate P. Hammond, member 
   P. Manetta, member D. Pietron, member  
   M. Pritzlaff, alternate J. Stewart, member  
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: S. Burt, member EA 

T. House, member  EA 
    
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF March 1, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of  March 1, 2006 be approved.  Supported 
by Fuhrman.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Leonard Bertin, previous Committee Chairman, and Robin Beltramini, City 
Councilwoman, attended the meeting as guests. 
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
We welcome two new members to our Committee; Chelsea Weidmann, Troy Athens, 
and Gina Hyun, Troy High School.  We look forward to their input. 
 
Members were provided a copy of the Oakland County Community and Home 
Improvement 2006 Annual Report.  The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
program funding is explained in this report.  It appears this Committee’s long term goal 
for a boundless playground might meet CDBG guidelines for funding.  Buchanan, 
Stewart and Grusnick will meet with Vicki Richardson to help determine the feasibility. 
 
Done spoke with Chris, Assistant Manager at Wal-Mart, Troy, regarding the procedure 
for their matching funds grant program.  A formal written request on letterhead must be 
personally delivered to the Troy store to initiate the program. 
 
Pritzlaff will contact Lori Bluhm, City Attorney, to invite her to our May meeting regarding 
information on grants for funding a boundless playground and changes to the Open 
Meetings Act. 
 
Professor Edward Orlowski, Chairman of the Department of Architecture at Lawrence 
Tech University, attended our meeting to present information on “universal design”, 
designing accessible buildings for mobility and sensory disabilities.  Students are taught 
freedom by design, a concept which was developed to give students a greater 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
APRIL 5, 2006 

 2

understanding of how to put these ideas into use in an abstract way from the beginning 
of the design through the final site finish.  Students during their sophomore year must 
spend a day confined to a wheelchair.  They are given assignments which involve 
traversing the entire campus in order to experience the difficulties of accessing and 
maneuvering buildings, parking and common areas.  Architects today are incorporating 
accessibility into the main building design and not segregating accessibility into 
separate or different areas of the building. 
 
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Werpetinski will attend the City Council meeting on 4/17/06 and Fuhrman on 4/24/06.   
 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
It was reported that the Sr. Expo held March 21 at the Community Center was very 
worthwhile and suggested that our Committee should also offer support and 
participation at the fall event. 
 
ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
ITEM H – CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Binson’s Medical Supply was denied a request to locate a new facility on Rochester 
Road on property which is currently zoned single family. 
 
ITEM I – ADJOURN 
Pietron made a motion to adjourn at 8:40 which was seconded by Hammond. 
 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                         Angie Done, Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
APRIL 5, 2006 

 1

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, April 5, 2006, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  Angela 
Done called the Meeting to order at 7:08 P.M. 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member A. Done, member  
   A. Fuhrman, alternate P. Hammond, member 
   P. Manetta, member D. Pietron, member  
   M. Pritzlaff, alternate J. Stewart, member  
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: S. Burt, member EA 

T. House, member  EA 
    
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF March 1, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of  March 1, 2006 be approved.  Supported 
by Fuhrman.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
Leonard Bertin, previous Committee Chairman, and Robin Beltramini, City 
Councilwoman, attended the meeting as guests. 
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
We welcome two new members to our Committee; Chelsea Weidmann, Troy Athens, 
and Gina Hyun, Troy High School.  We look forward to their input. 
 
Members were provided a copy of the Oakland County Community and Home 
Improvement 2006 Annual Report.  The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
program funding is explained in this report.  It appears this Committee’s long term goal 
for a boundless playground might meet CDBG guidelines for funding.  Buchanan, 
Stewart and Grusnick will meet with Vicki Richardson to help determine the feasibility. 
 
Done spoke with Chris, Assistant Manager at Wal-Mart, Troy, regarding the procedure 
for their matching funds grant program.  A formal written request on letterhead must be 
personally delivered to the Troy store to initiate the program. 
 
Pritzlaff will contact Lori Bluhm, City Attorney, to invite her to our May meeting regarding 
information on grants for funding a boundless playground and changes to the Open 
Meetings Act. 
 
Professor Edward Orlowski, Chairman of the Department of Architecture at Lawrence 
Tech University, attended our meeting to present information on “universal design”, 
designing accessible buildings for mobility and sensory disabilities.  Students are taught 
freedom by design, a concept which was developed to give students a greater 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
APRIL 5, 2006 

 2

understanding of how to put these ideas into use in an abstract way from the beginning 
of the design through the final site finish.  Students during their sophomore year must 
spend a day confined to a wheelchair.  They are given assignments which involve 
traversing the entire campus in order to experience the difficulties of accessing and 
maneuvering buildings, parking and common areas.  Architects today are incorporating 
accessibility into the main building design and not segregating accessibility into 
separate or different areas of the building. 
 
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Werpetinski will attend the City Council meeting on 4/17/06 and Fuhrman on 4/24/06.   
 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
It was reported that the Sr. Expo held March 21 at the Community Center was very 
worthwhile and suggested that our Committee should also offer support and 
participation at the fall event. 
 
ITEM G - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
ITEM H – CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Binson’s Medical Supply was denied a request to locate a new facility on Rochester 
Road on property which is currently zoned single family. 
 
ITEM I – ADJOURN 
Pietron made a motion to adjourn at 8:40 which was seconded by Hammond. 
 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                         Angie Done, Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        April 6, 2006 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, April 6 
2006 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to order at  
1 PM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair David Ogg, Member 
 Frank Shier, Member James Berar, Member  
 Bud Black, Member Pauline Noce, Member 
 Jo Rhoads, Member  Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: Merrill Dixon, Member, excused       
   
Visitors:  None 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-4-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads  
Seconded by Pauline Noce 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of March 2, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
None 
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that there were no bids for the project.  Jeff 
Biegler will contact some of the people on the bidder’s list to see why they did not bid.  The 
project will be delayed but it is still expected to be completed this summer. 
  
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that the contract is being 
reviewed by the City Attorney’s office before being presented to City Council.  There will be a 
discounted snack menu for non-profit groups. 
 
New Business 
 
Appointment of Park Board:   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-4-002 
Moved by David Ogg  
Seconded by James Berar 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        April 6, 2006 

2 

 
RESOLVED, That Merrill Dixon be recommended for reappointment to the Park Board. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: No report 
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that they had a booth at the Expo and it was a worthwhile 
experience.  They also dedicated a new van that day and celebrated the 10-year anniversary 
of their partnership with SMART.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that an estimated 350 seniors attended the March 21 Expo 
at the Community Center.  The 67 vendors brought a variety of information to seniors and 
there were also numerous health screenings, free chair massage, and dozens of door prizes.   
Two hundred seniors attended the fashion show on March 29 and comments have been very 
favorable.  A My Medicare Matters enrollment event will be held at the Community Center on 
April 26.   The Oakland County Spelling Bee will be held in Troy next year.  
 
OLHSA:  Pauline Noce reported that the meeting was cancelled due to low attendance.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they would be meeting 
with legislators at a breakfast in May.  Jo will be discussing transportation.  
 
Medicare Part D:  The committee discussed the complexity of the process and the uncertainty 
of who to enroll with because the medications a person is taking may change.   
 
Suggestion Box:  One unsigned suggestion stated that the $10 fee for a flea market table is 
too much.  After discussion, the committee decided that the fee is not unreasonable.  A second 
suggestion requested that the bathroom by the senior lunchroom not be closed for cleaning 
when there are a lot of seniors in the area.  Carla spoke to Kraig, and the cleaning schedule 
will be adjusted. 
 
Comments:   
 
David Ogg noted that the bylaws state that the election of officers should be held in April.  
They were scheduled for May last year but postponed until June due to lack of quorum in May.  
The election will be held in May this year.  
 
Frank Shier noted that he is a member of the Heart-Of-The-Hills Players and discussed ways 
that Troy could get more involved by attending performances in Warren or bringing a smaller 
group here to entertain.      
 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        April 6, 2006 

3 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:05 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair               
 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        May 4, 2006 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, May 4 
2006 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to order at  
1:15 PM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair David Ogg, Member 
 Frank Shier, Member (late) James Berar, Member  
 Bud Black, Member Pauline Noce, Member 
 Jo Rhoads, Member  Merrill Dixon, Member, excused    
 Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent: None    
   
Visitors:  John Scott, John Law, Ray Dean, Roger Rose, Bob Varto, Paula Fleming, Wade 

Fleming 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-5-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads  
Seconded by Pauline Noce 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of April 6, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 7       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
John Scott, John Law, Ray Dean, Roger Rose and Bob Varto attended representing the 
Wednesday and Thursday senior golf leagues.  They expressed the following concerns:   
They do not like the new requirement proposed for 2007 that they must pay for a set number of 
players regardless of how many are in attendance (the golf course has proposed to allow four 
unpaid absences per week), that non-residents must pay a higher rate, that they will be 
required to sign a contract, and that the City wants to transfer electronically a portion of the 
greens fees rather than give all of the money to the league treasurer.  Carla stated that the City 
does not want to take over the league, but the requirements of the finance department 
regarding documentation of expenditures must be met.  Carla will determine exactly what 
these requirements are and get a sample contract from the golf course for the league officers 
within one week.  Then we can work out the details.    
 
Paula Fleming reported on the school district election, the band’s trip to San Antonio, and a car 
wash fundraising event. 
 
Old Business 
  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        May 4, 2006 

2 

Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Merrill Dixon reported that Jeff Biegler is still looking for 
someone to do the project.  No one bid on the project, and he needs to find someone to do it.  
The committee would like Jeff to attend their next meeting to give a brief report on the facility.  
Carla will request his attendance. 
  
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that Council has decided that a 
one-year contract would be better than two.  The one-year contract will be presented to 
Council next week.   The City will go out for bid after the one-year contract expires.  Since the 
City now has a history with a caterer, a better contract might be negotiated. 
 
New Business 
 
Election of Officers:   
 
Resolution # SC-2006-5-002 
Moved by David Ogg  
Seconded by James Berar 
 
RESOLVED That Bud Black was elected Chair and Pauline Noce was elected as Vice Chair 
 
Yes: 8       
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon thanked the committee for recommending his reappointment to the 
Park Board. 
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that Medi-Go was happy to attend the Expo, and a new van 
was dedicated. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that 112 volunteers and 48 guests attended the volunteer 
banquet on April 25.  Forty-two people attended the My Medicare Matters enrollment event on 
April 26.   The cultural diversity series has been very interesting, but not well attended.  It may 
be offered again in the fall and opened to the general public.   
 
OLHSA:  Pauline Noce reported that their speaker was Jan Davis, LPN, from Select Specialty 
Hospital Services.  They do minor surgical procedures in their office.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  Jo Rhoads reported that they will be having a 
breakfast to discuss what they will be presenting to the legislatures. 
 
Medicare Part D:  JoAnn Thompson remarked that the May 15 deadline is coming up and 
many seniors are having a hard time making a decision.  
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        May 4, 2006 

3 

Suggestion Box:  There were two unsigned suggestions requesting no organ music on 
Fridays.  There was one thank you note for putting the larger “Senior Parking Only” sign out, 
but the writer stated that it is not out every day.  Carla will make sure it is getting put out every 
day.  She will also poll the seniors in attendance on Fridays to see how the majority feels about 
the organ music. 
 
Comments:   
 
Several committee members commented that they were glad that the golfers attended the 
meeting to express their concerns. 
 
JoAnn Thompson reported that she worked the school electron and the turn-out was low. 
 
David Ogg reported that the City seems to have stopped weeding the boulevards.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:25 PM. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair               
 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



DATE:        May 5, 2006
TO:            John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of April 2006

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Fnd./Shell New 1 $180,000.00 $1,010.00
Add/Alter 2 $27,000.00 $479.00

Sub Total 3 $207,000.00 $1,489.00

COMMERCIAL
New 1 $997,000.00 $7,124.00
Tenant Completion 1 $105,000.00 $880.00
Add/Alter 16 $912,650.00 $8,647.00
Wall 1 $50,000.00 $495.00
Repair 1 $500,000.00 $2,610.00

Sub Total 20 $2,564,650.00 $19,756.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 9 $1,477,086.00 $11,665.00
Add/Alter 30 $410,041.00 $5,803.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 2 $35,000.00 $535.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 6 $73,921.00 $1,103.00
Ent. Wall/Masonry Fence 1 $5,000.00 $85.00
Repair 2 $25,600.00 $472.00
Fire Repair 1 $150,000.00 $1,195.00
Wreck 5 $15,000.00 $280.00

Sub Total 56 $2,191,648.00 $21,138.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 4 $584,600.00 $4,696.00
Add/Alter 7 $77,598.00 $1,133.00

Sub Total 11 $662,198.00 $5,829.00

MULTIPLE
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $10,000.00 $215.00

Sub Total 1 $10,000.00 $215.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 1 $95,000.00 $810.00

Sub Total 1 $95,000.00 $810.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 4 $36,500.00 $495.00
Signs 54 $0.00 $6,115.00
Fences 24 $0.00 $370.00

Sub Total 82 $36,500.00 $6,980.00

TOTAL 174 $5,766,996.00 $56,217.00

PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF APRIL 2006
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 122 $1,220.00
Cert. of Occupancy 33 $1,853.70
Plan Review 141 $5,497.00
Microfilm 23 $244.00
Building Permits 174 $56,217.00
Electrical Permits 142 $9,640.00
Heating Permits 93 $4,870.00
Air Cond. Permits 34 $1,655.00
Refrigeration Permits 2 $130.00
Plumbing Permits 105 $7,593.00
Storm Sewer Permits 17 $583.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 11 $389.00
Sewer Taps 16 $4,050.00

TOTAL 913 $93,941.70

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF APRIL 2006
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 20 $100.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 23 $345.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 17 $17.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 4 $200.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 14 $140.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 5 $75.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 1 $10.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 18 $180.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 4 $60.00

TOTAL 106 $1,127.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2005 2005 2006 2006

JANUARY 93 $6,617,765.00 116 $7,273,163.00

FEBRUARY 133 $8,586,755.00 94 $6,659,691.00

MARCH 143 $19,405,253.00 127 $5,629,425.00

APRIL 234 $16,039,899.00 174 $5,766,996.00

MAY 229 $8,974,377.00 0 $0.00

JUNE 207 $14,432,280.00 0 $0.00

JULY 176 $7,490,327.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 202 $13,132,327.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 207 $11,424,698.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 169 $12,606,760.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 137 $9,014,642.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 91 $13,489,338.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 2021 $141,214,421.00 511 $25,329,275.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2006

12 9 4 9

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



May 5, 2006 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF APRIL 2006Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter GILBERT, E & SONS, INC 4052 ROCHESTER  198,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  198,000

Commercial, New Building SYNERGY GROUP INC 767 W BIG BEAVER  997,000

Commercial, New BuildingTotal  997,000

Commercial, Repair STRUCTURAL PRESERVATION SYSTEM 50 W BIG BEAVER 100  500,000

Commercial, RepairTotal  500,000

Commercial, Tenant Completion DESIGNSTRUCT 3137 CROOKS  105,000

Commercial, Tenant CompletionTotal  105,000

Industrial, Fnd./Shell New KEMP, TOM 244 MINNESOTA  180,000

Industrial, Fnd./Shell NewTotal  180,000

Total Valuation:  1,980,000Records  6



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



campbellld
Text Box
J-03e



campbellld
Text Box
J-04a





mccombca
Text Box
J-05







May 3, 2006 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Troy Police Citizens Forum 
 
 
 
Recently, COTHA (Coalition of Troy Homeowners Associations) disbanded.  The 
Troy Police Department utilized the COTHA meetings as a vehicle to disseminate 
information to our residents, to answer questions about police service and 
concerns about crime, and to gather feedback about the services we provide.  
COTHA’s demise created a void.  To fill that void the Community Services 
Section has instituted a  “Troy Police Citizens Forum”, which they plan on hosting 
twice annually at the Fire/Police Training Center, located at 4850 John R. 
 
The forum will include a brief welcome from either myself or one of the Captains, 
discussions on recent crime trends and upcoming police events, break out 
sessions with different presentations, and a question – answer period.   
 
The first Forum is scheduled for 7:00 pm, May 31, 2006. The Community 
Services Section will utilize several methods to notify citizens and homeowners 
groups of the meeting. 
 
Attached is the tentative agenda.  Please contact Captain Gary Mayer if you 
desire additional information. 
 
  

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



TROY POLICE CITIZENS 
FORUM 

7:00  Chief or Division       
           Commander 
 
7:05  Officer Breidenich 
 
 
7:15   First Session 
 
 
 
 
7:45   Second Session 
 
 
8:15   Third Session 
 
 
8:45  Officer Breidenich 

Wednesday, May 31, 2006 
Fire and Police Training Center 

4850 John R 

Introduction and Welcome 
 
 
Crime Trends & Upcoming 
events 
 
Drug Awareness in Rm. #A, 
Identity Theft in Rm. #B or 
Internet Safety in RM. #C  
(rotating presentations) 
 
Repeat of sessions listed 
above 
 
Repeat of sessions listed 
above. 
 
Final Questions & Answers 

AGENDA 

SERVICE THROUGH PARTNERSHIP 

Refreshments served throughout forum in break room 

 



campbellld
Text Box
J-07































TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: May 9, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: Cable Franchise Lawsuit Against the City of Troy  
 
 

 
 Municipalities scored a recent victory when the Michigan Supreme Court recently denied 
leave to appeal in the cases that challenged cable franchise fees as illegal taxes.  The City of Troy 
was one of thirteen municipal defendants served with such a lawsuit.  The other municipalities 
include Ann Arbor, Canton Township, Grand Rapids, Kalamazoo, Livonia, Midland, Muskegon, 
Plymouth Township, Royal Oak, St. Clair Shores, Warren and Westland.  Eight of the individual 
circuit court judges dismissed the lawsuit in against the following jurisdictions:  Ann Arbor, Canton 
Township, Grand Rapids, Livonia, Muskegon, St. Clair Shores, and Westland.  The Plaintiffs 
voluntarily dismissed the Plymouth Township case, and Warren settled their case.  Although the 
remaining three jurisdictions (Troy, Royal Oak, and Midland), had filed motions for dismissal, the 
circuit court judges stayed these cases to wait for a final decision in the Michigan Supreme Court.  
The Michigan Supreme Court has denied the Plaintiff’s application for leave to appeal, thereby 
finalizing the decisions of the Michigan Court of Appeals.   
 
 These eight cases were not formally consolidated at the Court of Appeals, but they were all 
heard on the same day.  Exhaustive briefs were filed in all of the cases, and the Michigan Municipal 
League Legal Defense Fund also filed an amicus brief in support of the municipal position.  These 
briefs raised several justifications for dismissal, and addressed all of the successful arguments relied 
upon by the eight separate circuit court judges in the courts below.  However, the Court of Appeals 
relied only on the statute of limitations argument in affirming seven of the eight cases.  The Court 
held that the lawsuits were not filed within one year of the execution of the cable franchise 
agreements, as required by MCL 600.308(a)(3), and therefore were precluded.  However, the 
statute of limitations defense was not available in the eighth case, since Livonia followed a different 
procedure in the circuit court.  In that case, the Court of Appeals held that Livonia’s revenue from the 
franchise fee in the one- year prior to the filing of the lawsuit was not disproportionate to the 
expenses for cable in that same year, and therefore the cable franchise fee was not a tax.   
 
 With the Michigan Supreme Court decision denying Plaintiff’s application for leave to appeal, 
the stayed case against the City of Troy should also be dismissed, allowing our cable franchise 
agreements to stay intact.  In Troy, the City receives cable franchise fees that represent 5% of the 
company’s gross revenues, which totals approximately $800,000 per year.   
 

If you have any questions, please let me know.  
 
 
CC:  Cable Advisory Board  

campbellld
Text Box
J-08



TO: Mayor and Members of City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: May 9, 2006 

 

SUBJECT: Carrie Zanoni v. City of Troy, Officer Jones , & Sgt. Stout  
 
 

Enclosed please find a copy of the Order dismissing the City of Troy from the 
lawsuit filed by Carrie Zanoni against the City of Troy and Police Officer Joshua Jones 
and Sgt. Christopher Stout.  This order was entered after a hearing on our Motion for 
Summary Disposition, which was entered on May 3, 2006 by Judge John McDonald.  
 

This lawsuit was initially filed as an auto negligence case against co-Defendant 
Rebecca Ann Roose, who hit Zanoni with her car on August 17, 2003.  The accident 
occurred on Livernois at Woodslee, and resulted in serious injuries to Plaintiff, who was a 
pedestrian.  After discovery had commenced in the case, Plaintiff asked for permission to 
amend the complaint to add the City of Troy and its police officers and the City of Clawson 
and its police officers as co-defendants.  This request was granted on November 25, 2005.  
In the amended complaint, Plaintiff argued that the municipalities and their police officers 
were at least partially at fault for her injuries, since they had contact with her prior to her 
accident, and knew that she had been drinking, and therefore was likely to have been 
involved in an accident.  She argued that the police officers were obligated to take her into 
custody or otherwise take some action to prevent the accident, even though she was not 
driving at the time of her contact with the Troy police officers, and was not incapacitated.  

 
In our motion for summary disposition, we argued that the City and its officers are 

immune from liability in this case.  Under state statute, municipalities are provided with 
tort immunity, since they undertake to provide services that private entities are hesitant 
to provide, due to risk management concerns.  Examples of these services include 
providing and servicing roads, sidewalks and recreational facilities, and providing police 
protection.  This immunity is not absolute, however, and may be pierced.  One exception 
to the broad grant of governmental immunity is where a municipality’s agent is carrying 
out his or her duties in a grossly negligent manner, and this gross negligence is the 
proximate cause of an injury.  State statute defines gross negligence as conduct so 
reckless as to demonstrate a substantial lack of concern for whether an injury results.  
The Michigan Supreme Court has defined proximate cause as the most immediate, 
efficient, and direct cause of the injury or damage. 

 
The Court determined that Plaintiff had not established an exception to 

governmental immunity, and therefore dismissal of the City and the officers was 
appropriate.  Judge McDonald first opined that Officer Jones and Sgt. Stout’s contact 
with Plaintiff was carried out in a professional manner, which did not rise to the level of 
gross negligence.  In addition, the Court also determined that Plaintiff did not establish 
the required proximate cause element.  In the Court’s opinion, the City and/or the officers 
were not the most direct, immediate and efficient cause of Ms. Zanoni’s injuries.  The 
injuries were instead a direct result of Ms. Roose striking Plaintiff with her car.  

 
If you have any questions, please let us know. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-09







campbellld
Text Box
J-10


	AGENDA: May 15, 2006
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Preliminary Planned Unit Development Approval – PUD-5 Ca
	C-2 Adoption of 2006/07 City Budget

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	a\) 18th Annual Celebration of Life Picn�
	Mental Health Month – May 2006
	Arbor Day 2007 – 2009

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Ex�

	E-5 Private Agreement for Franklin Bank – Project No. 06.902

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Adviso
	F-2 Approval of Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 2006-07 B
	F-3 Approval of Local Development Finance Authority 2006-07 
	F-4 Approval of Downtown Development Authority 2006-07 Budge
	F-5 Proposed Resolution In Support of the Current Local Cabl
	F-6 Amendment to Chapter 20 of the City Code (Water and Sewe

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a\) Commercial Vehicle Appeal Renewal – �
	b\) Rezoning Application \(Z 704\) – P

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	a) Revisions to Troy City Code Chapter 18 (City Water Utility)


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – December 15, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Apr
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Apr
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – April 6, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – May 4, 2006

	J-2 Department Reports:
	a\) Building Department – Permits Issued�

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a) Letter of Appreciation from the Souvatzidis Family Regarding the Professionalism and Efforts of Lieutenant Scherlinck
	b) Letter to Chief Craft from St. Joseph Catholic Chaldean Church Thanking the Troy Police Department for Assistance with Traffic Control During Easter Services
	c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Diana Folleth, Capitol Barricading, Inc., Regarding the Assistance Provided by the Troy Police Department
	d) Letter to Chief Craft from Marty Torgler, Combine International, Inc., Commending the Performance and Professionalism of Lieutenant Chuck Pappas
	e) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Chris Gartner Regarding the Efforts and Professionalism of Officer Rushton

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	Resolution from Rose Township – Retaining Local Control of C

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from the Troy Police Department Regarding
	J-7  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority
	J-8  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding
	J-9  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding
	J-10  Communication from the Director of Building and Zoning

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  Review of Applications for Employment f

	ADJOURNMENT



